OFFICIAL STATEMENT

NEW ISSUE - BOOK ENTRY ONLY NON-RATED

In the opinion of Special Counsel, the interest portion of the Base Rental payments to be made by the County under the Lease and
received by the owners of the Certificates is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under present federal income tax
laws and is exempt from personal income taxes of the State of Mississippi under present state income tax laws. However, the interest
portion of the Base Rental payments is included in the computation of certain federal taxes on corporations. See the section entitled "TAX
MATTERS" herein.
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The Certificates of Participation (Simpson County, Mississippi Lease Purchase Project), Series 2010 (the "Certificates") represent fractional and
proportionate undivided interests in a Lease and Option to Purchase (the "Lease") including the right to receive Base Rental payments thereunder (as defined
herein), to acquire, construct, finance and equip a County jail, sheriff department/justice court building and related facilities, including but not limited to a
dormitory to house state prisoners under authority of Sections 31-8-1 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972 (the "Act") with the proceeds of the sale of the
Certificates and leased to Simpson County, Mississippi by the Central Mississippi Public Improvement Corporation, a non-profit corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Mississippi (the "Corporation"). Pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, the Corporation has irrevocably assigned
certain of its rights under the Lease, including the right to receive Base Rental payments paid by the County, to the Trustee.

The Certificates are issuable only as fully registered certificates, without coupons. The Certificates will be available to purchasers in the principal
denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof. The Certificates will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), as securities depository for the Certificates. Purchasers of the Certificates will not receive physical
delivery of the Certificates. The principal or redemption price of and interest on the Certificates are payable by wire transfer to DTC which, in turn, will
remit such principal, redemption price or interest to DTC Participants for subsequent disbursements to the Beneficial Owners of the Certificates, as more
fully discussed herein. See "THE CERTIFICATES - Book-Entry Only System" herein.

Interest is payable by BancorpSouth, Jackson, Mississippi, as Trustee, by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date to the persons who
were the registered Owners of the Certificates as of the Record Date for such payment. Interest is payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year (each an
Interest Payment Date"), commencing May 1, 2011. Principal of the Certificates is payable at maturity thereof or earlier redemption thereof at the corporate
trust office of the Trustee in Jackson, Mississippi or at the office of any paying agent. The Certificates shall mature on November 1 of each year,
commencing November 1, 2011, as set forth on the inside of the front cover hereof.

Certificates maturing on November 1, 2021 and thereafter, are subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity, at par, plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption, either in whole at any time on or after November 1, 2020, or in part, in inverse order of maturity and by lot within a
maturity on November 1, 2020, or on any Interest Payment Date thereafter.

The Certificates are subject to mandatory redemption as described herein.

The obligation of the County to make Base Rental and Additional Rental payments under the Lease constitutes a binding obligation of
the County in accordance with the terms of said Lease. Provided, however, so long as no default of any monetary obligation of the County has
occurred, the County's obligation to pay any amounts due or perform any covenants requiring or resulting in the expenditure of money shall be
contingent and expressly limited to the extent of any specific, annual appropriation made by the County to fund such Lease. Nothing contained in
the Lease shall create any monetary obligation on the part of the County beyond such current and specific appropriation. The County's Board of
Supervisors (the "Governing Body"), in its sole discretion, may make said payments with any lawfully available revenues. Except as stated in the
Trust Agreement, nothing in the Lease creates a lien of any kind or character whatsoever upon any funds, income or revenue now existing or
hereafter held, collected, received, anticipated by, or available to the Governing Body or prevents or restricts the Governing Body at any time from
pledging, obligating or creating specific liens upon funds, income or revenues to or for the payment of any bonds, notes or certificates of the
Governing Body or for any other purpose whatsoever. The County has not pledged or levied any form of taxation for the payment of Outstanding
Certificates (see the section entitled ""Reappraisal of Property and Limitation on Ad Valorem Levies" in APPENDIX A herein.)

The obligation of the County under the Lease is not a general obligation and does not constitute a pledge of the full faith and credit of the County,
the State of Mississippi or any political subdivision or agency thereof within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation.

The Certificates have been designated by the County as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

CREWS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

The Certificates are offered when, as and if delivered to and received by the Corporation, subject to the approval of legality by
Butler, Snow, O'Mara, Stevens & Cannada, PLLC, Special Counsel. The Certificates, in book-entry form, will be available for delivery in
Jackson, Mississippi on or about November 1, 2010.

The date of this Official Statement is September 28, 2010



MATURITY SCHEDULE
SERIAL CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

YEAROF  PRINCIPAL INTEREST

MATURITY AMOUNT RATE YIELD CusSsIP
2011 $275,000 3.000% 1.700% 829036 AAO
2012 285,000 3.000 1.850 829036 AB8
2013 290,000 3.000 2.050 829036 AC6
2014 300,000 3.000 2.250 829036 AD4
2015 310,000 3.000 2.550 829036 AE2
2016 320,000 3.000 2.900 829036 AF9
2017 330,000 3.125 3.200 829036 AG7
2018 340,000 3.375 3.450 829036 AHS
2019 350,000 3.625 3.650 829036 AJ1
2020 365,000 3.750 3.850 829036 AKS
2021 375,000 4.000 4.000 829036 AL6
2022 390,000 4.000 4.100 829036 AM4
2023 410,000 4.125 4.200 829036 AN2
2024 425,000 4.125 4.250 829036 AP7
2025 440,000 4.250 4.350 829036 AQS5

TERM CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION

$2,535,000 @ 4.700% Term Certificate Due November 1, 2030 @ 4.70%, CUSIP 829036 AR3



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized to make any
representations with respect to the Certificates other than is contained in this Official Statement,
and if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as
authorized by the County. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy any of the Certificates in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it
is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The information regarding
DTC has been obtained from DTC, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by the
County. The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official
Statement: The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in
accordance with and as a part of its responsibility to investors under the federal securities laws as
applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee
the accuracy or completeness of such information. The information, estimates and expressions
of opinion contained herein are subject to changes without notice, and while all information has
been secured from sources which are believed to be reliable, all parties preparing and distributing
the Official Statement make no guaranty or warranty relating thereto. All opinions, estimates or
assumptions, whether or not expressly identified, are intended as such and not as representations
of fact. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement shall, nor any sale made hereunder, under
any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the
County since the date hereof.
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$7,740,000
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION
(SIMPSON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI LEASE PURCHASE PROJECT),
SERIES 2010
Evidencing Proportionate Interests in a Lease,
Including the Right to Receive
Base Rental Payments Thereunder, to be Made by
SIMPSON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Official Statement, which includes the attached APPENDICES, is to
provide certain information concerning the sale and delivery of the Certificates of Participation
(Simpson County, Mississippi Lease Purchase Project), Series 2010 (the "Certificates"), in the
initial aggregate principal amount of $7,740,000. The Certificates represent fractional and
proportionate undivided interests in a Lease and Option to Purchase (the "Lease"), dated as of the
date of delivery, by and between Simpson County, Mississippi (the "County"), and Central
Mississippi  Public Improvement Corporation, a Mississippi non-profit corporation (the
"Corporation"), including the right to receive payments to be made by the County as Base Rental
for the use and occupancy of facilities to be utilized as a County jail, sheriff department/justice
court and related facilities, including but not limited to a dormitory to house State prisoners. The
County is authorized to enter into said Lease and pay said Base Rental pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 31-8-1 ef seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended.

The meaning of capitalized terms used in this Official Statement is set forth under the
caption "GLOSSARY" unless otherwise defined herein, or in the Trust Agreement.

Pursuant to a Ground Lease (the "Ground Lease"), dated as of the date of delivery, by and
between the Corporation and the County, the County will lease to the Corporation a certain
parcel of real property (the "Property") on which the acquisition, construction, financing and
equipping of a County jail, sheriff department/justice court building and related facilities,
including but not limited to a dormitory to house State prisoners ("Improvements") are to be
constructed (the Improvements and the Property are referred to herein, collectively as the
"Project") (see "THE PROJECT" herein), and, pursuant to the Lease. The Corporation will agree
to cause the Improvements to be constructed on the Property and will agree that the costs or
acquisition and construction of the Project will be paid from proceeds of the sale of the
Certificates.

The Certificates are being issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreement"),
dated as of the date of delivery, by and between the County and BancorpSouth, Jackson,
Mississippi, as Trustee (the "Trustee"). Under the terms of an Assignment Agreement, dated as
of the date of delivery (the "Assignment Agreement"), the Corporation will assign to the Trustee,
for the benefit of the Owners of the Certificates, all of its right, title and interest in and to the
Lease and the Ground Lease (excepting only the Corporation's obligation to cause the Project to
be constructed and its rights to indemnification and payment or reimbursement of its costs and



expenses). Such assignment to the Trustee will include the Corporation's right to receive Base
Rental payments and the right to enforce payment of Base Rental when due.

Under the Lease, the County is required to make Base Rental payments, each of which
contains an interest component and a principal component which the Trustee will distribute to
the Owners of the Certificates. In addition, the Lease requires the County to pay, as Additional
Rental, any taxes, assessments and insurance premiums with respect to the Project and, to the
extent not paid out of proceeds of the Certificates, the fees and expenses of the Trustee, the
expenses of execution and delivery of the Certificates and any other fees, costs or expenses
incurred by the Corporation in connection with the execution, performance and enforcement of
the Lease, the Trust Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated thereby or related to the
Project. To secure the performance of its obligation to pay Base Rental, the County shall deposit
each Base Rental payment with the Trustee at least five days prior to the date on which the Base
Rental is due, for application by the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Trust
Agreement. In the event any such date of deposit is not a Business Day, such deposit shall be
made on the next preceding Business Day.

The obligation of the County to pay Base Rental shall commence on the Closing Date.
Base Rental payments with respect to the Project shall be payable from any source lawfully
available therefor.

The obligations of the County to make the Base Rental payments and to perform and
observe the other agreements on its part contained in the Lease shall be absolute and
unconditional, regardless of whether the Project shall have been entirely completed at the time
the first payment becomes due hereunder and regardless of the continued existence of the Project
in a physical condition satisfactory to the County.

Until the principal of and interest on the Certificates have been fully paid or all the
County's obligations under the Lease are satisfied and defeased, the County (1) shall not
diminish, suspend or discontinue any payments provided for in the Lease, (2) shall perform and
observe all of its other agreements contained in the Lease, and (3) shall not terminate the Lease.

The County has covenanted in the Lease to take such action as may be necessary to
include and maintain all Base Rental payments and other payments due under the Lease for the
Project in its annual budget, and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all such
payments until all principal of and interest on the Certificates shall have been paid or all
obligations of the County under the Trust Agreement satisfied and terminated.

THE OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY TO MAKE BASE RENTAL AND
ADDITIONAL RENTAL PAYMENTS UNDER THE LEASE CONSTITUTES A
BINDING OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS
OF SAID LEASE. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, SO LONG AS NO DEFAULT OF ANY
MONETARY OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY HAS OCCURRED, THE COUNTY'S
OBLIGATION TO PAY ANY AMOUNTS DUE OR PERFORM ANY COVENANTS
REQUIRING OR RESULTING IN THE EXPENDITURE OF MONEY SHALL BE
CONTINGENT AND EXPRESSLY LIMITED TO THE EXTENT OF ANY SPECIFIC,
ANNUAL APPROPRIATION MADE BY THE COUNTY TO FUND SUCH LEASE.



NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE LEASE SHALL CREATE ANY MONETARY
OBLIGATION ON THE PART OF THE COUNTY BEYOND SUCH CURRENT AND
SPECIFIC APPROPRIATION. THE COUNTY'S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (THE
"GOVERNING BODY"), IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, MAY MAKE SAID PAYMENTS
WITH ANY LAWFULLY AVAILABLE REVENUES. EXCEPT AS STATED IN THE
TRUST AGREEMENT, NOTHING IN THE LEASE CREATES A LIEN OF ANY KIND
OR CHARACTER WHATSOEVER UPON ANY FUNDS, INCOME OR REVENUE
NOW  EXISTING OR HEREAFTER HELD, COLLECTED, RECEIVED,
ANTICIPATED BY, OR AVAILABLE TO THE GOVERNING BODY OR PREVENTS
OR RESTRICTS THE GOVERNING BODY AT ANY TIME FROM PLEDGING,
OBLIGATING OR CREATING SPECIFIC LIENS UPON FUNDS, INCOME OR
REVENUES TO OR FOR THE PAYMENT OF ANY BONDS, NOTES OR
CERTIFICATES OF THE GOVERNING BODY OR FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE
WHATSOEVER. THE COUNTY HAS NOT PLEDGED OR LEVIED ANY FORM OF
TAXATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING CERTIFICATES (SEE THE
SECTION ENTITLED "REAPPRAISAL OF PROPERTY AND LIMITATION ON AD
VALOREM LEVIES" IN APPENDIX A HEREIN.)

THE OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY UNDER THE LEASE IS NOT A
GENERAL OBLIGATION AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A PLEDGE OF THE FULL
FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE COUNTY, THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI OR ANY
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR AGENCY THEREOF WITHIN THE MEANING OF
ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY PROVISION OR LIMITATION.

For certain information with respect to the County, including financial information, See
APPENDIX A - "SIMPSON COUNTY INFORMATION" and APPENDIX B - "FINANCIAL
INFORMATION ON COUNTY."

The meaning of capitalized terms used in this Official Statement is set forth under the
caption "GLOSSARY" unless otherwise defined herein, or in the Trust Agreement.

[remainder of page left blank intentionally]



ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The sources and uses of funds are estimated to be as follows:

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Principal Amount of Certificates $7,740,000.00
County Contributions 376,373.75
Net Reoffering Premium 10,626.25
Total Sources $8.127,000.00
USES OF FUNDS:
Deposit to General Account of Construction
And Acquisition Fund $7,740,000.00
Deposit to Costs of Issuance Account of Construction
And Acquisition Fund 243,810.00
Underwriter’s Discount 143.190.00
Total Uses of Funds $8.127,000.00

GLOSSARY

"Acquisition Costs" means, with respect to the Project and related facilities, the contract
price paid or to be paid to or at the direction of the Contractor for the acquisition, construction,
expansion, remodeling, enlarging, equipping, installation, delivery and financing of the Project
and related facilities, in accordance with the General Construction Contract, and includes
reimbursement to the County and Corporation for any payments made by the County and
Corporation prior to or subsequent to the execution of the Lease pursuant to the declaration of
official intent of the governing body of the County under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2.
Acquisition Costs also include the cost of the site of the Project, the costs of site preparation
necessary for the construction and installation of the Project and related facilities, costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the execution and delivery of the Certificates, the Ground
Lease, the Lease, the Assignment Agreement and the Trust Agreement, and any and all
agreements, instruments, certificates or other documents issued in connection therewith, any
premium with respect to insurance of the Certificates, as well as administrative, engineering,
legal, financial and other costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, construction,
expansion, remodeling, enlarging, equipping, installation, delivery and financing of the Project
and related facilities. Acquisition Costs also include capitalized interest, if any, for a period of
construction plus one (1) year, less any amounts on deposit in the Interest Account for
capitalized interest.

"Additional Rental" means those amounts, other than Base Rental, to be paid by the
County under the Lease, taxes, assessments and insurance premiums and, to the extent not paid
out of proceeds of the sale of the Certificates, the fees and expenses of the Trustee and the
expenses incurred by the Corporation in connection with the execution, performance or
enforcement of the Lease or the Trust Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated
thereby.



"Administrative Expense Fund" means the trust fund established pursuant to the Trust
Agreement for the payment of expenses of the Corporation or the County incidental to the
execution and delivery of the Certificates and other administrative charges of the Corporation or
the County in order to comply with the terms of the Certificates or the Trust Agreement.

"Assignment Agreement" means that certain Assignment Agreement, dated as of the date
of delivery, by and between the Corporation and the Trustee, pertaining to the assignment of all
of the Corporation's right, title and interest (excluding the Corporation's obligation to cause the
Project to be constructed and excluding the Corporation's right to indemnification and
reimbursement for any costs or expenses) in and to the Lease and the Ground Lease to the
Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Certificates.

"Base Rental" means those amounts set forth in the Lease and designated as Base Rental
to be paid by the County for the use and occupancy of the Project, as such amounts may be
adjusted from time to time in accordance with the terms of the Lease, but does not include
Additional Rental. A table setting forth the Base Rental payments is included in APPENDIX D
to this Official Statement.

"Base Rental Fund" means the trust fund established pursuant to the Trust Agreement,
into which all Base Rental payments received by the Trustee shall be deposited.

"Business Day" means a day which is not a Saturday or Sunday, or a day on which the
offices of the County are authorized or required by law to be closed, or a day on which banking
institutions are authorized or required by law to be closed in the State of New York or the State
of Mississippi for commercial banking purposes or a day on which the New York Stock
Exchange is closed.

"Certificate Fund" means the trust fund established pursuant to the Trust Agreement for
the payment or redemption of principal, interest and premium, if any, with respect to the
Certificates.

"Certificate Obligation" means, as of any date of calculation, with respect to any
Outstanding Certificate, the principal amount with respect thereto.

"Certificate Year" means the one-year (or shorter) period beginning on the day after the
expiration of the preceding Certificate Year. The first Certificate Year shall begin on the date of
delivery and ends on November 1, 2011.

"Certificates" means the $7,740,000 Certificates of Participation (Simpson County,
Mississippi Lease Purchase Project), Series 2010, dated the date of delivery, and offered by this
Official Statement and representing proportionate interests in the Lease, including the right to
receive Base Rental payments thereunder.

"Closing Date" means November 1, 2010, or such later date as may be set by the parties
hereto.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any Regulations
promulgated thereunder and pursuant thereto.



"Construction Fund" or "Construction and Acquisition Fund" means the Construction and
Acquisition Fund, a trust fund established under the Trust Agreement for the payment of costs of
acquiring and constructing the Project and related facilities and costs of executing and delivering
the Certificates.

"Contingency Account" means the Contingency Account established within the
Certificate Fund established for the purpose of receiving any delinquent Base Rental payments,
any proceeds of rental interruption insurance and any liquidated damages with respect to the
Project.

"Corporation" means Central Mississippi Public Improvement Corporation, a Mississippi
non-profit corporation.

"Costs of Issuance" means all of the costs of issuing the Certificates, including, but not
limited to, all printing and document preparation expenses in connection with the Trust
Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Lease, the Assignment Agreement, the Certificates and the
Official Statement pertaining to the Certificates and any and all other agreements, instruments,
certificates, or other documents issued in connection therewith; rating agency fees, CUSIP
Service Bureau charges; market study fees; costs of financial guaranty or municipal bond
insurance premium or surety bond premium, if any; underwriter fees; legal fees and expenses of
counsel with respect to the financing of the Project; any computer and other expenses incurred in
connection with the Certificates; the initial fees and expenses of the Trustee and any paying
agent (including without limitation, origination fees and first annual fees payable in advance);
and other fees and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Certificates or the
implementation of the financing for the Project.

"Costs of Issuance Account" means the account within the Construction and Acquisition
Fund established for the payment of the Costs of Issuance with respect to the Certificates.

"County" means Simpson County, Mississippi.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the County, which currently is the period from
October 1 to and including the following September 30.

"General Account" means the account established under the Trust Agreement in the
Construction and Acquisition Fund into which shall be deposited a portion of the proceeds of the
sale of the Certificates.

"Governing Body" means the Board of Supervisors of the County.

"Ground Lease" means the Ground Lease, dated as of the date of delivery, by and
between the County and the Corporation pursuant to which the County leases the Property to the
Corporation for construction thereon of the Project.

"Improvements" means those certain improvements which are acquired, constructed,
installed and delivered on the Property in accordance with the plans and specifications for the
Project approved by the County.



"Interest Account”" means the account established in the Certificate Fund under the Trust
Agreement.

"Interest Payment Date" means May 1 and November 1 in each year, commencing May
1, 2011, until the maturity or earlier redemption date of the Certificates.

"Lease" means the Lease and Option to Purchase, dated as of the date of delivery, by and
between the County as lessee and the Corporation as lessor pursuant to which the County leases
the Property from the Corporation.

"Lease Year" means the period from the Closing Date through November 1, 2011, and
thereafter each twelve month period from each November 2 to and including the following
November 1 during the term of the Lease.

"Official Statement" means this Official Statement, including the appendices hereto.

"Option Price" means the total amount necessary to defease all Outstanding Certificates
(as such term is defined in the Trust Agreement) pursuant to and in accordance with Section
10.01 of the Trust Agreement.

"Original Purchaser" means Crews & Associates, Inc., Little Rock, Arkansas.

"Outstanding" when used with respect to Certificates, means all Certificates theretofore
executed and delivered by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement except:

(1) Certificates theretofore canceled by the Trustee or surrendered to the
Trustee for cancellation;

(2) Certificates for payment or repayment of which funds or eligible securities
in the necessary amount shall have theretofore been deposited with the Trustee in
accordance with the Trust Agreement (whether on or prior to the maturity or redemption
date of such Certificates), provided that, if such Certificates are to be redeemed prior to
maturity, notice of such redemption shall have been given as provided in the Trust
Agreement or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of
notice; and

3) Certificates in lieu of or in exchange for which other Certificates shall
have been executed and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Owner" means the registered owner, as indicated in the Certificate Register, of any
Certificate.

"Paying Agent" shall mean any bank, trust company or other financial institution
designated by the County for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates and
which shall initially be the same entity as the Trustee.

"Principal Account" means the Principal Account established within the Certificate Fund
under the Trust Agreement.



"Project" means collectively, the Property including Improvements to be constructed on
the Property including equipment to be acquired and installed on the Property with the proceeds
of the Certificates.

"Property" means the real property which is leased by the County to the Corporation
pursuant to the Ground Lease and on which the Improvements are to be located.

"Property Insurance" means the insurance required to be maintained by the County as
described in the Lease.

"Qualified Investments" means and includes all securities, instruments and the like in
which the County is authorized to invest its funds in accordance with applicable state law and the
rules and regulations promulgated by the State Treasurer pursuant to Section 31-19-5,
Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended.

"Rebate Fund" means a Trust Fund established pursuant to the Trust Agreement, into
which monies will be deposited pursuant to Section 3.07 of the Trust Agreement.

"Record Date" means the fifteenth (15th) day of the month before an Interest Payment
Date, whether or not a Business Day.

"Redemption Account" means the Redemption Account established within the Certificate
Fund under the Trust Agreement.

"Rental Deposit Date" means the day which is five days prior to the date on which the
next payment of Base Rental is scheduled to become payable.

"Special Counsel" means Butler, Snow, O'Mara, Stevens & Cannada, PLLC, Ridgeland,
Mississippi.

"Total Maturity Amount" means, with respect to any Outstanding Certificate, the
aggregate principal amount thereof.

"Trust Agreement" means the Trust Agreement dated as of the date of delivery, by and
between the County and the Trustee providing for the execution and delivery of the Certificates
and providing the terms of the Certificates.

"Trustee" means BancorpSouth, Jackson, Mississippi, acting as Trustee under the Trust
Agreement, and any successor trustee thereunder.

"Underwriter" means the Original Purchaser.
THE PROJECT

The County will lease the Property to the Corporation, and the Corporation will agree to
cause the Improvements to be constructed and installed thereon.



The Certificates will be issued to provide funds for acquisition, construction, financing
and equipping a County jail, sheriff department/justice court building and related facilities,
including but not limited to a dormitory to house State prisoners under authority of Sections 31-
8-1 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972 (the "Act") located in Simpson County, Mississippi. The
existing jail and related facilities will be expanded by 23 feet 4 inches x 84 feet 4 inches
approximating 1,974 square feet increasing the capacity of the County detention facility by 30
beds. The Project will contain (i) a dormitory and lock-down space and (ii) a guard station.

THE CERTIFICATES
General Provisions

The Certificates represent proportionate interests in the Lease, including the right to
receive a proportionate share of Base Rental payments thereunder.

Details of Certificates. The Certificates will be issued in fully registered form in $5,000
denominations or any integral multiple thereof. Interest with respect to the Certificates will be
computed using a year of 360 days comprised of twelve 30-day months and is payable on May 1
and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2011. The Certificates will mature on the
dates and in the principal amounts, with interest computed at the rates, as set forth on the cover
page of this Official Statement.

Principal of Certificates will be payable upon surrender thereof at maturity or the earlier
redemption thereof at the corporate trust office of the Trustee in Jackson, Mississippi, or the
office of any paying agent. Amounts designated as interest will be payable by check or draft,
mailed on the Interest Payment Date to the persons who are the registered Owners as of the
Record Date for such payment, as their names and addresses appear on the Certificate Register
maintained by the Trustee.

Registration, Transfer and Exchange. The registration of any Certificate may be
transferred upon the surrender of such Certificate to the Trustee and payment of such reasonable
transfer fees as the Trustee may establish. Certificates may be exchanged at the corporate trust
office of the Trustee for a new Certificate of like tenor and maturity in the same Total Maturity
Amount and in authorized denominations. The Trustee may charge the Owner of a Certificate
surrendered for exchange a reasonable sum for each new Certificate executed and delivered upon
such exchange and the Trustee may require the payment by such Owner of any tax or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange. The Trustee is not
required to register the transfer or exchange of any Certificate that has been called, or is subject
to being called for redemption prior to maturity, during a period beginning at the opening of
business 15 days before any selection of Certificates for such redemption through the close of
business on the redemption date, except for the unredeemed portion of any Certificate to be
redeemed in part only.

Book-Entry Only System

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities
depository for the Certificates. The Certificates will be initially issued as fully-registered
certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other



name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered
Certificate will be issued for the Certificates in the aggregate principal amount of such issue and
will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation”
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency"
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non—U.S. equity
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100
countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in
deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between
Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, is the
holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its
regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S.
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or
indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC
Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Certificates under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for such Certificates on DTC's records. The ownership
interest of each actual purchaser of each Certificate ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be
recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transactions, as well as periodic statements
of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner
entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Certificates are to be
accomplished by entries made on the records of Direct or Indirect Participants acting on behalf
of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in Certificates, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the
Certificates is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Certificates deposited by Direct Participants with
DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Certificates with
DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect
any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of
the Certificates. DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts the Certificates are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The
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Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on
behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Certificates
may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant
events with respect to the Certificates, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Certificate documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Certificates may
wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Certificates for their benefit has agreed to obtain
and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to
provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided
directly to them.

Redemption notices are to be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Certificates within an
issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each
Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to Certificates unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Corporation as
soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or
voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Certificates are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Certificates will be
made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative
of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds
and corresponding detailed information from the Corporation or Trustee, on the payable date in
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street
name", and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee,
Corporation, or the Trustee, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments
to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC) is the responsibility of the Corporation, or Trustee, disbursement of such payments to
Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Certificates
at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Corporation or the Trustee. Under such
circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Certificate is required to
be printed and delivered.
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The Corporation may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers
through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Certificates will be printed
and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been
obtained from sources that the Corporation believes to be reliable, but the Corporation takes no
responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered holder of the Certificates as nominee of DTC,
references herein to the Holders, holders, or registered owners of the Certificates mean Cede &
Co. and not the Beneficial Owners of the Certificates.

THE CORPORATION, THE TRUSTEE AND THE UNDERWRITER CANNOT
AND DO NOT GIVE ANY ASSURANCES THAT THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR
THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS WILL DISTRIBUTE TO THE BENEFICIAL
OWNERS OF THE CERTIFICATES (I) PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF OR
INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, ON THE CERTIFICATES; (II) CERTIFICATES
REPRESENTING AN OWNERSHIP INTEREST OR OTHER CONFIRMATION OF
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN CERTIFICATES; OR (III) REDEMPTION
OR OTHER NOTICES SENT TO DTC OR CEDE & CO., ITS NOMINEE, AS THE
REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE CERTIFICATES, OR THAT THEY WILL DO SO
ON A TIMELY BASIS OR THAT DTC OR DIRECT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS
WILL SERVE AND ACT IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT. THE CURRENT "RULES" APPLICABLE TO DTC ARE ON FILE
WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND THE CURRENT
"PROCEDURES" OF DTC TO BE FOLLOWED IN DEALING WITH DTC
PARTICIPANTS ARE ON FILE WITH DTC.

NEITHER THE CORPORATION, THE TRUSTEE NOR THE UNDERWRITER
WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO SUCH DTC
PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH RESPECT TO (1) THE
CERTIFICATES; (2) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC
OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT; (3) THE PAYMENT BY ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OF
ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF OR INTEREST OR PREMIUM, IF ANY, ON THE
CERTIFICATES; (4) THE DELIVERY BY ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OF ANY
NOTICE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED
UNDER THE TERMS OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT TO BE GIVEN TO
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS; (5) THE SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS
TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE
CERTIFICATES; OR (6) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY
DTC AS A CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

Redemption Prior to Maturity

Optional Redemption. Certificates maturing on November 1, 2021 and thereafter, are
subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity, at par, plus accrued interest to the
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date of redemption, either in whole at any time on or after November 1, 2020, or in part, in
inverse order of maturity and by lot within a maturity on November 1, 2020, or on any Interest
Payment Date thereafter if the County exercises its prepayment rights under Section 15 of the
Lease. See "SUMMARY OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS - The Lease - Option to Purchase"
herein.

Redemption from Insurance Proceeds and Condemnation Awards. The Certificates are
subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, on any date, without premium at a price
equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued but unpaid interest from the following
sources:

(a) proceeds of any Property Insurance, including the proceeds of any self-insurance
fund, or the proceeds of any condemnation award, which have not been applied to repairing or
replacing damaged, destroyed or taken property;

(b) proceeds of title insurance received as a result of a title defect in respect of the
Project, if the County determines that such title defect has materially affected the Project; and

(c) proceeds of damages or other payments received by the Trustee from the
enforcement of any rights and powers of the Trustee under the Lease after payment of overdue
interest and principal with respect to the Certificates.

Redemption From Excess Construction Fund Moneys. The Certificates are subject to
mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, on any date, without premium, at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued but unpaid interest, from moneys transferred
to the Redemption Account within the Certificate Fund from the General Account of the
Construction Fund after completion of the Project.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Certificate maturing November 1, 2030 is
subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part, by lot, on November 1 in each of the years
set forth below:

$2,535,000
Term Certificate
Maturing November 1. 2030

Principal
Year Amount
2026 $460,000
2027 485,000
2028 505,000
2029 530,000
2030* 555,000

*Final maturity.

The Trustee shall credit against the mandatory sinking fund requirement for the
Certificate maturing November 1, 2030 as set forth above, any Certificates of such maturity
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delivered to the Trustee for cancellation or purchased for cancellation by the Trustee and
cancelled by the Trustee and not therefore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation.
Each Certificate of such maturity so delivered or cancelled shall be credited by the Trustee at one
hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof against the mandatory sinking fund
obligation on the applicable mandatory sinking fund redemption date, and any excess of such
amount shall be credited to future redemption obligations, and the principal amount of the
Certificates of such maturity to be redeemed by operation of the applicable mandatory sinking
fund requirements shall be accordingly reduced; provided, however, the Trustee shall only credit
such Certificates to the extent such are received on or before 45 days preceding the applicable
mandatory redemption date as set forth above.

Selection and Partial Redemption of Certificates. If less than all of the Certificates of a
particular maturity at the time Outstanding are to be called for redemption, the particular
Certificates or portions thereof of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected, except as
otherwise provided in the Trust Agreement, by the Trustee in such manner of random selection
as the Trustee, in its discretion, may determine. The Trustee shall call for redemption in
accordance with the foregoing provisions as many Certificates or portions thereof as will, as
nearly as practicable, exhaust the moneys available therefor. Particular Certificates or portions
thereof shall be redeemed only in integral multiples of a principal amount of $5,000.

In the case of Certificates of denominations greater than $5,000, if less than all of such
Certificates then Outstanding are to be called for redemption, then for all purposes in connection
with redemption, each $5,000 of principal amount shall be treated as though it was a separate
Certificate of the denomination of $5,000 bearing one of the numbers borne by such by
registered Certificate. If it is determined that one or more, but not all of the $5,000 units of
principal amount represented by any such fully registered Certificate is to be called for
redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such $5,000 unit or units, the Owner of such
fully registered Certificate shall forthwith surrender such Certificate to the Trustee (a) for
payment of the redemption price (including the redemption premium, if any, and interest to date
fixed for redemption) of the $5,000 unit or units of principal amount called for redemption, and
(b) exchange for a new Certificate or Certificates of the aggregate principal amount of the
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such fully registered Certificate, which shall be
issued to the Owner thereof without charge therefor. If the Owner of any such fully registered
Certificate of a denomination greater than $5,000 shall fail to present such Certificate to the
Trustee for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Certificate shall nevertheless become due
and payable on the date fixed for redemption to the extent of the $5,000 unit or units of principal
amount called for redemption (and to that extent only). Interest shall cease to accrue on the
portion of the principal amount of such Certificate represented by such $5,000 unit or units of
principal amount on and after the date fixed for redemption, provided that funds sufficient for the
payment of the redemption price shall have been deposited with the Trustee and shall be
available for the redemption of said $5,000 unit or units on the date fixed for redemption, and in
such event, such Certificate shall not be entitled to the benefit or security of this Trust
Agreement to the extent of the portion of its principal amount (and accrued interest thereon to the
date fixed for redemption and applicable premium, if any) represented by such $5,000 unit or
units of principal amount, nor shall new Certificates be thereafter issued corresponding to said
unit or units.
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Notice. Notice of redemption identifying the numbers of Certificates or portions thereof
to be redeemed shall be given to the Owners thereof by first class mail at least thirty (30) days
and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption. From and after such
redemption date, interest with respect to the Certificates to be redeemed will cease to accrue.

SOURCES OF PAYMENT

The Certificates represent proportionate interests in the Lease including, in particular, the
right to receive a proportionate share of the Base Rental payments to be made by the County
under the Lease. The Base Rental payments are to be paid from the general fund of the County
or any other source of funds lawfully available therefor. In the Lease, the County covenants to
take such action as may be necessary to include all Base Rental payments in its annual budget
and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all such Base Rental payments.

County’s Obligation for Payment

The obligation of the County to make Base Rental and Additional Rental payments under
the Lease constitutes a binding obligation of the County in accordance with the terms of said
Lease. Provided, however, so long as no default of any monetary obligation of the County has
occurred, the County's obligation to pay any amounts due or perform any covenants requiring or
resulting in the expenditure of money shall be contingent and expressly limited to the extent of
any specific, annual appropriation made by the County to fund such Lease. Nothing contained in
the Lease shall create any monetary obligation on the part of the County beyond such current and
specific appropriation. The County's Board of Supervisors (the "Governing Body"), in its sole
discretion, may make said payments with any lawfully available revenues. Except as stated in
the Trust Agreement, nothing in the Lease creates a lien of any kind or character whatsoever
upon any funds, income or revenue now existing or hereafter held, collected, received,
anticipated by, or available to the Governing Body or prevents or restricts the Governing Body at
any time from pledging, obligating or creating specific liens upon funds, income or revenues to
or for the payment of any bonds, notes or certificates of the Governing Body or for any other
purpose whatsoever. The County has not pledged or levied any form of taxation for the payment
of Outstanding Certificates (see the section entitled "Reappraisal of Property and Limitation on
Ad Valorem Levies" in APPENDIX A herein.)

The obligation of the County under the Lease is not a general obligation and does not
constitute a pledge of the full faith and credit of the County, the State of Mississippi or any
political subdivision or agency thereof within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
provision or limitation.

No Right to Abatement Upon Damage, Destruction or Taking

The obligations of the County to make the payments required by the Lease thereof and to
perform and observe the other agreements on its part contained in the Lease and Trust
Agreement shall be absolute and unconditional, regardless of whether the Project shall have been
entirely completed at the time the first payment becomes due hereunder and regardless of the
continued existence of the Project in a physical condition satisfactory to the County. Until such
time as the principal of and interest on the Certificates shall have been fully paid or all the
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County's obligations under the Lease and the Trust Agreement satisfied and defeased, the County
(1) shall not diminish, suspend or discontinue any payments provided for in the Lease, (2) shall
perform and observe all of its other agreements contained in the Lease, and (3) shall not
terminate the Lease for any cause.

Under the Lease (see the caption "SUMMARY OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS -
Lease"), the County agrees to secure and maintain at all times a policy or policies of insurance
against loss or damage to the Project known as "all risk." Such insurance shall be maintained at
all times in an amount not less than the aggregate amount of Certificates Outstanding at such
time. If the required insurance is not available from reputable insurers at a reasonable cost, the
County shall be required to self-insure to the extent necessary to enable it to repair or replace the
Project in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.2 of the Lease.

The Lease requires that the proceeds of the Property Insurance received in respect of
destruction of or damage to the Project shall be paid to the Trustee for application in accordance
with the provisions of the Trust Agreement, unless the County elects pursuant to the Trust
Agreement to apply such proceeds to the replacement, repair or reconstruction of the Project.
For a description of the County's options with respect to the repair or replacement of the Project
and the use of Property Insurance proceeds, see "SUMMARY OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS
- Trust Agreement -Property Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds" herein.

SUMMARY OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS

The following are summaries of certain provisions contained in the Ground Lease, the
Lease, the Trust Agreement and the Assignment Agreement and are not to be considered full
descriptions thereof.

Ground Lease

Under the Ground Lease, the County has leased, at the stated advance rental of $1.00, the
real property which will be the site of the Project. Such Property is leased to the corporation for
a term expiring upon the earlier of (i) November 1, 2030 or (ii) the date of termination of the
Lease or the purchase by the County of the Corporation's leasehold interest in the Project.

Lease

Rentals. Under the Lease, the County promises to make Base Rental payments for the
use of the Project. Base Rental payments will be distributed by the Trustee to the Owners of the
Certificates (See "CERTIFICATES - Book-Entry Only System" herein). In the Lease, the
County also promises to pay Additional Rental. The Lease is a triple net lease, and the County is
obligated accordingly to pay all utility charges, maintenance expenses and other costs associated
with the operation and possession of the Project. Base Rental due May 1 in any year shall be for
the period November 2 of the prior year through the first day of May of such year, and Base
Rental due November 1 in any year shall be for the period May 1 of such year through the first
day of November of such year. To secure the performance of its obligation to pay Base Rental,
the County is required to deposit each Base Rental payment with the Trustee on or before the
fifth day (5™) preceding the date on which the Base Rental payment is due, provided, however,
that if such fifth (5™) day is not a Business Day, the County is required to deposit such Base
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Rental payment with the Trustee on the first Business Day preceding the date the Base Rental
payment would otherwise be due. However, the amount to be deposited as set forth under
APPENDIX D hereto shall be reduced by any amounts already on deposit in the Base Rental
Fund. The Corporation has, in the Assignment Agreement, assigned to the Trustee its rights to
receive the Base Rental.

Term of Lease. The Lease Term begins on the Closing Date and ends November 1, 2030,
or at such earlier time as the Certificates have been paid or provision for their payment has been
made in accordance with the provisions of the Lease and the Trust Agreement.

Upon payment of all Base Rental and Additional Rental required by the Lease or upon
the sale of the Project to the County or its assignee pursuant to the exercise of the option to
purchase the Project described below, the Lease shall terminate and title to the Project, and any
improvements thereon or additions thereto, shall be transferred directly to the County or, at the
option of the County, to any assignee or nominee of the County in accordance with the
provisions of the Lease.

Option to Purchase. The County is given the exclusive right and option which shall be
irrevocable during the term of the Lease to purchase the Lessor's interest in the Project on any
Business Day, upon payment of the option price, but only if the County is not in default under
the Lease or the Trust Agreement. The option price is the total amount necessary to defease all
Outstanding Certificates pursuant to and in accordance with the Trust Agreement.

Construction of Project. The Corporation shall agree to cause the Project and the related
facilities to be constructed and installed and shall authorize the County to enter into and to
provide for, or cause to be provided for, the complete construction and installation of the Project
and the related facilities in accordance with the terms of the Lease, the plans, and the General
Construction Contract, as hereinafter defined. Payment for the costs of constructing and
installing the Project and the related facilities shall be made from the moneys deposited in the
Construction and Acquisition Fund. The Corporation agrees that it will cause the construction,
acquisition, delivery and installation of the Project and the related facilities to be diligently
performed in accordance with the Lease and any applicable requirements of governmental
authorities and law.

Covenant to Repair. During the term of the Lease, the County shall, at its own expense,
maintain the Project, or cause the Project to be maintained, in good order, condition and repair
and shall replace any portion of the Project which is destroyed; provided that the County shall
not be required to repair or replace any such portion of the Project pursuant to the Lease if there
shall be applied to the redemption of Certificates insurance proceeds or other lawfully available
funds sufficient to redeem (i) all of the Certificates Outstanding or (ii) any portion thereof, and
the rental payments allocable to the remaining portion of the Project equals the pro rata portion
of Base Rental allocable to the Certificates Outstanding after such redemption.

Insurance. The County is required to secure and maintain or cause to be secured and
maintained at all times with insurers of recognized responsibility, or, to the extent allowed
below, through a program of self-insurance, all coverage on the Project described below.
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Such insurance shall consist of:

(1)  Property and casualty insurance for the Project in an amount (except as provided
below) equal to the replacement cost of the Project. Such coverage must apply exclusively to the
Project and must be available to repair/rebuild the Project under all circumstances after the
occurrence of an insured peril. Full payment of insurance proceeds up to the required policy
dollar limit in connection with damage to the Project shall, under no circumstances, be
contingent on the degree of damage sustained at other facilities owned or leased by the County.
The policy must explicitly waive any co-insurance penalty.

2) To the extent sovereign immunity is waived, comprehensive general liability
coverage against claims for damages including death, personal injury, bodily injury, or property
damage arising from operations involving the Project, in an amount recommended from time to
time by the County's risk management officer or an independent insurance consultant retained by
the County for that purpose; provided, however, that the County's obligations under this clause
(2) may be satisfied by self-insurance in an amount based on the recommendation of an
independent insurance consultant retained by the County;

(3)  From and after the substantial completion of the Project which shall be evidenced
by a Certificate of Completion, boiler and machinery coverage against loss or damage by
explosion of steam boilers, pressure vessels and similar apparatus now or hereafter installed in
the Project in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 per accident;

4) Workers' compensation insurance issued by a responsible carrier authorized under
the laws of the State of Mississippi; provided, however, that the County's obligations under this
clause (4) may be satisfied by self-insurance; and

Title insurance in an amount equal to the par value of the Certificates and an opinion of
counsel to the effect that the exceptions set forth in the policy do not materially impair the use of
the Project and the Property for the purposes for which the same are, or may reasonably be
expected to be, held. No self-insurance is permitted with respect to the above requirements for
title insurance.

All policies or certificates issued by the respective insurers for insurance, with the
exception of workers' compensation insurance, shall provide that such policies or certificates
shall not be canceled or materially changed without at least 30 days' prior written notice to the
Trustee. On or before November 2 of any Lease Year, the County shall deposit with the Trustee
a certificate of a County Representative stating that the County is in compliance with the
insurance requirements set forth in Section 4.4 of the Trust Agreement. All required insurance
policies must be provided by a commercial insurer rated A by Best or in the two highest rating
categories of S&P and Moody's. Insurance policies shall name the Trustee as additional insured.

Application of Property Insurance Proceeds. Proceeds of Property Insurance received in
respect of destruction of or damage to the Project by fire or other casualty or event shall be paid
to the Trustee for application in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. (See the
caption "SUMMARY OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS - Trust Agreement - Property Insurance
and Condemnation Proceeds.")
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Eminent Domain. Ifthe Project, or any portion thereof, shall be taken under the power of
eminent domain, the Lease shall continue in full force and effect and shall not be terminated by
virtue of such taking and in the Lease the parties waive the benefit of any law to the contrary.
Any award made in eminent domain proceedings for the taking shall be paid to the Trustee for
application in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement.

Default. Any of the following shall be defaults under the Lease: (i) the County shall fail
to deposit with the Trustee any Base Rental on the day such deposit is required to be made, (ii)
the County shall fail to pay any item of Additional Rental when the same shall become due and
payable or (iii) the County shall breach any other terms, covenants or conditions contained in the
Lease or in the Trust Agreement and shall fail to remedy any such breach with all reasonable
dispatch within a period of 30 days after written notice thereof from the Corporation to the
County; provided, however, that if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within such
period, then such period will be extended so long as corrective action is instituted by the County
within such period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected, but only if such extension
would not materially adversely affect the interest of the Owners of the Certificates.

Remedies. Upon the happening of an event of default, the Lessor may (i) terminate the
Lease, (ii) with the consent of the County, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
keep the Lease in full force and effect and relet or sell the Project for the account of the County,
and the County will remain liable for any cumulative net deficiency of rental payments under the
Lease, (iii) terminate the Lease and relet the premises or sell the Project, (iv) enforce all of the
rights and remedies under the Lease as they mature against the County, and (iv) exercise such
other remedies as may be legally available.

Subleases. The County may sublease all or any portion of the Project or grant
concessions to others for the use of all or part of the Project as may be necessary or convenient
or assign its right to purchase the Project pursuant to the Lease, but the County will remain liable
for all of its obligations under the Lease.

Amendments to Lease. Pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement and the Lease, the
Lease may be amended in writing by agreement between the parties thereto, with the consent of
the Trustee, but no such amendment shall become effective as to the Owners of Certificates then
Outstanding unless and until approved in writing by the Owners of a majority in aggregate
amount of Certificate Obligation then Outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Lease
and the rights and obligations provided thereby may also be modified or amended at any time
with the consent of the Trustee but without the consent of any Owners of the Certificates, upon
the written agreement of the County and the Corporation, but only (1) for the purpose of curing
any ambiguity or omission relating thereto, or of curing, correcting or supplementing any
defective provision contained in the Lease, (2) in regard to questions arising under the Lease
which the County and the Corporation may deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent
with the Lease and which shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the
Certificates, or (3) for any other reason, provided such modification or amendment does not
adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Certificates or impose additional duties,
responsibilities or liabilities upon the Trustee; provided that the County, the Corporation and the
Trustee may rely in entering into any such amendment or modification thereof upon the opinion
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of Independent Counsel stating that the requirements of this sentence have been met with respect
to such amendment or modification.

Trust Agreement

Funds and Accounts. Under the Trust Agreement, the Trustee holds the Construction and
Acquisition Fund, including the General Account and the Costs of Issuance Account therein, the
Administrative Expense Fund, the Base Rental Fund, the Certificate Fund, including the Interest
Account, the Principal Account, the Redemption Account and the Contingency Account therein,
and the Rebate Fund. Amounts deposited in the Base Rental Fund, and the Certificate Fund are
pledged to payment of the Certificates. Amounts deposited in the Rebate Fund are held for the
benefit of the federal government.

Construction and Acquisition Fund. On the Closing Date moneys will be deposited into
the General Account and into the Costs of Issuance Account of the Construction and Acquisition
Fund. Amounts in the Costs of Issuance Account will be used to pay costs and expenses related
to the execution, delivery and sale of the Certificates. Any amount not used for such purpose is
to be transferred to the General Account. Amounts in the General Account are to be used to pay
Acquisition Costs, which, with respect to the Project and the related facilities, include the
contract price paid for the acquisition, construction, installation or delivery of the Project and the
related facilities, in accordance with the Construction Contract, and include reimbursement to the
County and Corporation for any payments made to the Contractor by the County and
Corporation prior or subsequent to the execution of the Lease. Acquisition Costs also include the
cost of the site of the Project, the costs of site preparation, costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the execution and delivery of the Certificates, the Ground Lease, the Lease, the
Assignment Agreement and the Trust Agreement, and any and all other agreements, instruments,
certificates or other documents issued in connection therewith, any premium with respect to
insurance of the Certificates, as well as administrative, engineering, legal, financial and other
costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, construction, delivery, installation, furnishing,
equipping and financing of the Project and related facilities.

If, after payment of the Acquisition Costs, there shall remain any balance of moneys in
the General Account, all money so remaining shall be transferred, first, to the Redemption
Account in the Certificate Fund, and seconded, to the Interest Account of the Certificate Fund.

Base Rental Fund. The Base Rental Fund is established in the Trust Agreement to
receive amounts deposited on account of Base Rental payments with the exception of delinquent
Base Rental payments. Moneys in the Base Rental Fund are to be transferred by the Trustee to
the Principal Account and Interest Account within the Certificate Fund on the applicable Interest
Payment Dates or redemption dates in an amount which, together with money on deposit therein,
equals the interest and principal then due or required to be prepaid with respect to the
Certificates.

Certificate Fund. Moneys available in the Interest Account and the Principal Account
shall be applied by the Trustee to the payment of interest or principal payable on any Interest
Payment Date or redemption date. Any delinquent Base Rental payments, proceeds of rental
interruption insurance and any liquidated damages will be deposited in the Contingency Account
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and shall be transferred first, to the Interest Account and Principal Account, in such order of
priority, for payment of past due interest and principal payments. Any amounts remaining in the
Contingency Account after the foregoing transfers have been made shall be transferred to the
Redemption Account. Property Insurance proceeds and condemnation awards not used to repair
or replace the Project, the proceeds of title insurance received by the Trustee in the event of a
title defect and damages or other payments received by the Trustee from the enforcement of any
rights under the Lease and the Trust Agreement will be deposited into the Redemption Account
maintained in the Certificate Fund and applied to the redemption of Certificates. Any amounts
remaining in the General Account of the Construction and Acquisition Fund upon completion of
the Project and the delivery of the Certificate of Completion to the Trustee will be transferred in
integral multiples of $5,000 to the Redemption Account in the Certificate Fund and applied to
the redemption of the Certificates.

Administrative Expense Fund. The Administrative Expense Fund is established in the
Trust Agreement for the purpose of paying the expenses of the Corporation or the County
incidental to the execution and delivery of the Certificates and other related administrative
charges not otherwise paid or provided from Certificate proceeds, and, at the election of the
County, amounts therein may be used to pay principal of and interest on the Certificates.

Investment. All moneys held by the Trustee in any of the funds established under the
Trust Agreement must be invested in Qualified Investments so as to obtain the highest yield
practicable, giving due regard to the safety of such funds and the date upon which such funds
will be required for the uses and purposes specified in the Trust Agreement, subject, however, to
instructions as to investment from the County and matters of yield restriction, where appropriate.

Surplus. After payment of all amounts due with respect to the Certificates, payment of
all fees and expenses to the Trustee, or satisfactory provision for such payments having been
made, any amounts remaining in any of the funds or accounts established hereunder and not
required for such purposes shall be remitted to the County and used for any lawful purpose
thereof.

Property Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds. In the Trust Agreement, the County
affirmatively covenants to maintain all Property Insurance required by the Lease as outlined in
"Summary of Financing Documents - Lease - Insurance." Under the Trust Agreement, the
proceeds of any Property Insurance, including the proceeds of any self-insurance fund, and the
proceeds of any condemnation award, received on account of any damage, destruction or taking
of the Project shall be held by the Trustee in an account (the "Special Account") and made
available for, and to the extent necessary be applied to, the cost of repair or replacement of the
Project.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County shall notify the Trustee within 90 days of the
receipt by the Trustee of the Property Insurance or condemnation proceeds, whether the County
intends to replace or repair the portion of the Project with respect to which such proceeds were
received. If the County elects to replace or repair such portion of the Project, the County is
required to deposit with the Trustee the full amount of any insurance deductible to be credited to
the Special Account. The County shall be required to replace or repair such portion of the
Project, unless (i) the County deposits the full amount of any insurance deductible necessary,
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together with the proceeds of insurance, to redeem prior to maturity the Certificates relating to
such portion of the Project and (ii) the Base Rental with respect to the remaining portion of the
Project is sufficient to pay the Certificate Obligation and interest due with respect to the
Certificates to remain Outstanding after the date on which Certificates relating to such portion of
the Project are redeemed. The proceeds of any Property Insurance, including the proceeds of any
self-insurance fund, or the proceeds of any condemnation award, not applied to repairing or
replacing damaged, destroyed or taken property, or in respect to which notice in writing by the
County of its intention to apply the same to the work of repairing or replacing the property
damaged, destroyed or taken shall not have been given to the Trustee within 90 days after receipt
of such proceeds by the Trustee, or which the County shall at any time during such period have
notified the Trustee are not to be so applied, shall forthwith be deposited into the Redemption
Account and applied to the redemption of Certificates in accordance with the Trust Agreement.

Title Insurance. Under the Trust Agreement, Proceeds of any policy of title insurance, if
any, received by the Trustee in respect of the Project shall (a) if the County determines that the
title defect does not materially affect the operation of the Project be remitted to the County; or
(b) if the County determines that such title defect has materially affected a portion of the Project,
be deposited in the Redemption Account of the Certificate Fund and applied to the redemption of
Certificates.

Tax Covenant. The County covenants in the Trust Agreement that, in order to maintain
the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the portion of Base Rental
designated as and comprising interest on the Certificates, the County will comply with each
applicable requirement of Section 103 and Sections 141 through 150 of the Code, in that the
County agrees to comply with the covenants contained in, and the instructions given pursuant to,
the Non-Arbitrage Certificate. The Trustee agrees to comply with any instructions received from
the County which the County indicates must be followed in order to comply with the Non-
Arbitrage Certificate.

Compliance With Trust Agreement. The County agrees in the Trust Agreement to
faithfully observe all covenants and other provisions contained in the Trust Agreement, in each
Certificate and in the Lease. Except as provided in the Lease, the County agrees that it will not
agree to any amendment to the Lease that would either lengthen the term thereof or reduce the
amount of Base Rental or Additional Rental payable thereunder, or change the time or times of
payment of such Base Rental or Additional Rental, or agree to any other amendment detrimental
to the rights of the Owners of the Certificates.

Prosecution and Defense of Suits. The County agrees in the Trust Agreement that it will
promptly take such action as may be necessary to cure any defect in the title to the Project and
shall prosecute and defend all such suits, actions and all other proceedings as may be appropriate
for such purpose. The County covenants that it will pursue eminent domain proceedings as may
be necessary to acquire the Property.

No Extension of Time of Payment. The County agrees in the Trust Agreement that it
will not directly or indirectly extend the dates upon which the Base Rental payments are required
to be paid or prepaid, or the time of payment of interest with respect thereto. Such covenant,
however, states that it shall not limit the right of the County to issue any securities for the
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purpose of providing funds for the redemption of the Certificates and such issuance shall not be
deemed to constitute an extension of the maturity of the Certificates.

Defaults; Remedies. The following are "events of default" under the Trust Agreement:

(a) An event of default shall have occurred under the Lease involving the failure by
the County to pay Base Rental or Additional Rental when due.

(b) Failure by the County to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under the Trust Agreement or the Lease, other
than such failure as may constitute an event of default under clause (a), for a period of 30 days
after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given;
provided, however, that if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within such period,
then such period will be extended so long as corrective action is instituted by the County within
such period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected, but only if such extension would
not materially adversely affect the interest of any Owner.

The filing by the County of a voluntary petition of bankruptcy.

Upon the occurrence and continuance of any event of default specified in (a) above, the
Trustee shall proceed, or upon the occurrence and continuance of any other event of default
under the Trust Agreement, the Trustee may proceed and upon written request of the Owners of
not less than a majority in aggregate amount of Certificate Obligation then Outstanding shall
proceed), to exercise the remedies set forth in the Lease and the Trust Agreement. The Trustee
shall take any appropriate action to cause the County to pay any Base Rental payment not paid
when due, upon written request and authorization by the Owners of a majority in aggregate
amount of Certificate Obligation then Outstanding, and upon being satisfactorily indemnified
against any expense and liability with respect thereto and after receiving payment for its fees and
expenses.

In the event the Trustee fails to take any action to eliminate an event of default under the
Lease or the Trust Agreement, including the collection of Base Rental when due, the Owners of a
majority in aggregate amount of Certificate Obligation then Outstanding may institute any suit,
action, mandamus or other proceeding in equity or at law for the protection or enforcement of
any right under the Lease or the Trust Agreement, but only if such Certificate Owners, as
applicable, shall have first made written request of the Trustee and shall have afforded the
Trustee a reasonable opportunity to proceed in its name and unless, also, the Trustee shall have
been offered reasonable security and indemnity against costs, expenses and liabilities, and the
Trustee shall have refused or neglected to comply with such request within a reasonable time.

Defeasance. The obligations of the Trustee and the County under the Trust Agreement
with respect to all Outstanding Certificates executed and delivered will terminate (except the
obligation of the Trustee to pay or cause to be paid to Certificate Owners sums received pursuant
to the terms of the Lease and due with respect to such Certificates and the obligation of the
County to pay the fees and expenses of the Trustee) when (i) all amounts designated as principal
and interest with respect to the Certificates have been paid; (i) money has been deposited, at or,
in the event of redemption prior to maturity thereof, before maturity, in trust with the Trustee in
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an amount sufficient to pay all Outstanding Certificates, including all principal, premium, if any,
and interest at or before their respective maturity dates; or (iii) lawful money or direct
obligations issued by the United States Treasury or in such other federal securities as may be
permitted under regulations issued pursuant to Section 149(b) of the Code, and which, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, will not impair the exclusion, if any, from gross
income for federal income tax purposes of interest due with respect to the Certificates, have been
deposited in trust with the Trustee which, together with the interest to accrue thereon, are
sufficient to pay all Outstanding Certificates, including all principal, premium, if any, and
interest at or, in the event of redemption prior to maturity thereof, before their respective
maturity dates.

Limitation of Liability. The Trust Agreement contains certain provisions limiting the
liability of the parties thereto, including the following provisions;

(1) except for the payment of Base Rental and Additional Rental when due in
accordance with the Lease and the performance of the other covenants of the County contained
in the Lease, the Ground Lease, the Certificates and the Trust Agreement, the County will have
no other obligation or liability to the Trustee or the Owners of the Certificates;

(1) except as otherwise provided in the Trust Agreement, the Trustee will not have
any obligation or liability to Owners of the Certificates with respect to the payment of Base
Rental payments by the County under the Lease;

(ii1)  the Trustee will not be responsible for (a) providing information to Certificate
Owners concerning the investment quality of the Certificates, (b) the performance by the County
of duties imposed upon it by the Trust Agreement, (c) the validity or sufficiency of the Trust
Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Lease, the Assignment Agreement or the Certificates, or (d)
the value of, or title to, the Project; and

(iv)  The County shall not have any obligation or liability to any other party or to the
Owners with respect to the performance by the Trustee of any duty imposed upon it by the Trust
Agreement.

Amendments to the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement may be amended with the
consent of the Owners of a majority in aggregate amount of Certificate Obligation then
Outstanding, or without consent of such Owners, (i) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or
omission relating thereto, or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision
contained in the Trust Agreement; (ii) in regard to questions arising under the Trust Agreement
which the County and the Trustee may deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with the
Trust Agreement and which do not adversely affect the interests of the Certificate Owners; or
(ii1) for any other reason, provided such modification or amendment does not adversely affect the
interests of the Owners of the Certificates. The County and the Trustee may rely in entering into
any such modification or amendment upon an opinion of counsel stating that the foregoing
requirements have been met with respect to such amendment. No amendment may impair the
right of any Certificate Owner to receive the share of Base Rental with respect to such Owner's
Certificate.
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Assignment Agreement

Under the Assignment Agreement, the Corporation assigns and transfers to the Trustee,
for the benefit of Certificate Owners, all of its rights, title and interest in and to the Ground Lease
and the Lease (excepting only its obligation to cause the Project to be constructed in accordance
with the Lease and its rights to indemnification and payment or reimbursement of its costs and
expenses), including its right to receive Base Rental payments and its right to enforce the
payment of Base Rental payments pursuant to the Lease. The Trustee accepts such assignment
for the purpose of securing such payments and rights to the Certificate Owners, subject to the
provisions of the Trust Agreement.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Butler, Snow, O'Mara, Stevens & Cannada, PLLC, Special Counsel,
under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions, the portion of each Base Rental
payment due under the Lease designated as and comprising interest and received by the Owners
of the Certificates is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes pursuant to
Section 103(a) of the Code. Special Counsel is further of the opinion that the portion of each
Base Rental payment due under the Lease designated as and comprising interest and received by
the Owners of the Certificates is exempt from personal income taxes of the State of Mississippi
under present state law.

In addition, Special Counsel is of the opinion that the Certificates are not "private activity
bonds" as defined in Section 141(a) of the Code and, therefore, interest with respect to the
Certificates is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the Code's alternative minimum tax
provisions.

In rendering such opinion, Special Counsel has relied upon representations and covenants
of the County in the Trust Agreement and in the County's Non-Arbitrage Certificate concerning
the investment and use of Certificate proceeds and the rebate to the federal government of certain
earnings thereon. In addition, Special Counsel has assumed that all such representations are true
and correct and that the County will comply with such covenants. Special Counsel has expressed
no opinion with respect to the exclusion of interest with respect to the Certificates from gross
income under Section 103(a) of the Code in the event that any of such County representations are
untrue or the County fails to comply with such covenants.

Although Special Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest with respect to the
Certificates is excluded from gross income to the extent described above, the Owners of the
Certificates should be aware that the receipt of interest with respect to the Certificates may
otherwise affect the federal income tax liability of the recipient. The presence of any such effect,
as well as the magnitude thereof, depends on the specific factual situation with respect to the
particular recipient of such interest. Special Counsel has expressed no opinion regarding any
impact of ownership or disposition of the Certificates other than as expressly described above.

Financial Institutions. Section 265(b)(1) of the Code provides that commercial banks,
thrift institutions and other financial institutions may not deduct the portion of their otherwise
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allowable interest expense allocable to tax-exempt obligations acquired after September 7, 1986
(other than "qualified tax-exempt obligations" as defined in Section 265(b)(3) of the Code).

The County has designated the Certificates as "qualified tax-exempt obligations"
pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Code. Eighty percent (80%) of the interest expense
deemed incurred by banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions to purchase or to
carry "qualified tax-exempt obligations" is deductible.

TAX TREATMENT OF ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT

The Certificates maturing on November 1 in the years 2017 through 2020 and 2022
through 2025 (the "Discount Certificates") are being offered and sold to the public at an original
issue discount ("OID") from the amounts payable at maturity thereon. OID is the excess of the
stated redemption price of a certificate at maturity (the face amount) over the "issue price" of
such certificate. The issue price is the initial offering price to the public (other than to bond
houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which
a substantial amount of certificates of the same maturity are sold pursuant to that initial offering.
For federal income tax purposes, OID on a certificate will accrue over the term of the certificate,
and for the Discount Certificates, the amount of accretion will be based on a single rate of
interest, compounded semiannually (the "yield to maturity"). The amount of OID that accrues
during each semi-annual period will do so ratably over that period on a daily basis. With respect
to an initial purchaser of a Discount Certificate at its issue price, the portion of OID that accrues
during the period that such purchaser owns the Discount Certificate is added to such purchaser’s
tax basis for purposes of determining gain or loss at the maturity, redemption, sale or other
disposition of that Discount Certificate and thus, in practical effect, is treated as stated interest,
which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Holders of Discount Certificates should consult their own tax advisors as to the treatment
of OID and the tax consequences of the purchase of such Discount Certificates other than at the
issue price during the initial public offering and as to the treatment of OID for state tax purposes.

TAX TREATMENT OF ORIGINAL ISSUE PREMIUM

The Certificates maturing on November 1 in the years 2011 through 2016 (the "Premium
Certificates") have an issue price that is greater than the amount payable at maturity of such
Premium Certificates. Any Premium Certificates purchased in the initial public offering at the
issue price will have an “amortizable certificate premium” within the meaning of Section 171 of
the Code. A holder of a Premium Certificate that has amortizable certificate premium is not
allowed any deductions for the amortizable certificate premium. During each taxable year, a
holder of a Premium Certificate must reduce such holder’s tax basis in such Premium Certificate
by the amount of the amortizable certificate premium that is allocable to the portion of such
taxable year during which the holder held such Premium Certificate. The adjusted tax basis in a
Premium Certificate will used to determine taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (e.g., upon a
sale, exchange, redemption or payment at maturity) of such Premium Certificate.

Holders of Premium Certificates who did not purchase such Premium Certificates in the
initial offering at the issue price should consult their own tax advisors with respect to tax
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consequences of owning such Premium Certificates. Any holders of Premium Certificates
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of
owning the Premium Certificates.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by Crews & Associates, Little Rock,
Arkansas (the "Underwriter"), shown on the cover hereof at a purchase price of $7,607,436.25
($7,740,000.00 par amount of Bonds, plus a net reoffering premium of $10,626.25, less
$143,190.00 for an Underwriter’s discount). The bond purchase agreement pursuant to which
the Underwriter expects to purchase the Bonds provides that the Underwriter will purchase all
the Bonds if any are purchased. The obligation of the Underwriter to accept delivery of the
Bonds is subject to various conditions stated in such bond purchase agreement.

The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to other dealers and other purchasers at
prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the cover page hereof. The initial public
offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The County has retained Government Consultants, Inc., Jackson, Mississippi, as
independent financial advisor in connection with the sale and issuance of the Certificates. In
such capacity the Financial Advisor has provided recommendations and other financial guidance
to the County with respect to the preparation of documents, the preparation for the sale of the
Certificates and of the time of the sale, bond market conditions and other factors related to the
sale of said Certificates. Although the Financial Advisor performed an active role in the drafting
of this Official Statement, it has not independently verified any of the information set forth
herein.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Butler, Snow, O'Mara, Stevens & Cannada, PLLC, Ridgeland, Mississippi, Special
Counsel, will render an opinion with respect to the Lease and the Certificates, substantially in the
form set forth in APPENDIX C to this Official Statement. Copies of such opinion will be
available at the time of delivery of the Certificates. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for
the County by Danny Welch, Mendenhall, Mississippi.

LITIGATION

There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before
or by any court, public board or public body pending, or to the knowledge of the County
threatened against affecting the County or, to its knowledge, any basis therefor, wherein an
unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect the transactions contemplated by
this Official Statement or the validity of the Certificates, the Lease or any other agreement or
instrument to which the County is a party and which is used or contemplated for use in the
transactions contemplated by this Official Statement.
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VALIDATION

The Certificates will be validated by the Chancery Court of Simpson County as provided
by Sections 31-13-1 to 31-13-11, Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended. The validation decree
shall be final and binding.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The County will enter into a written undertaking with the Trustee for the benefit of the
Owners of the Certificates to deliver, or to cause to be delivered, to each "nationally recognized
municipal securities information repository," within the meaning Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities
and Exchange Commission ("Rule 15¢2-12"), and certain other entities described in Rule 15¢2-
12 (said repositories and other entities are collectively referred to as "Repositories"), the
information described herein.

In the County's undertakings, the County has agreed to cause the delivery to the
Repositories of (a) annual financial information relating to the Project, and (b) certain events
relating to the County's undertakings if the County deems such events to be material so long as
the Lease with the Corporation remains in effect. Should the Lease not continue in effect, the
County shall undertake disclosure responsibilities with respect to the Project or cause any
successor user of the Project to undertake such responsibilities.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The purpose of this Official Statement is to supply information to prospective buyers of
the Certificates. Quotations, summaries and explanations of the Certificates and of statutes and
documents contained in this Official Statement do not purport to be complete, and reference is
made to such documents and statutes for full and complete statements of their provisions.

The information contained in this Official Statement has been taken from sources
considered reliable, but it is not guaranteed. Any statement in this Official Statement involving
matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not
representation of fact. No representation is made that any of the statements will be realized.

The County regularly prepares a variety of reports, including audits, budgets and related

documents, as well as certain monthly activity reports. Any Owner of a Certificate may obtain a
copy of any such report, as available, from the County.
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The preparation and distribution of this Official Statement have been duly authorized by
the County's Board of Supervisors. Concurrently with the delivery of the Certificates, the
County will furnish its certificate to effect that, to the best of its knowledge, this Official
Statement, as of its date and as of the date of delivery of the Certificates, does not contain an
untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit any material fact which should be included
therein for the purpose for which this Official Statement is to be used, or which is necessary to
make the statements contained herein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading. This Official Statement has been "deemed final" by the County for the purposes
of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12.

SIMPSON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

BY:/s/ Curtis SKkiffer
PRESIDENT, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

/s/ Tommy Joe Harvey
CLERK, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
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ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

General Description

Simpson County, Mississippi (the "County"), formed in 1824, lies in the piney woods soil
area of south central Mississippi. The County has an agrarian-based economy and is a leader in
the poultry industry. The City of Mendenhall, the county seat of Simpson County, lies
approximately 35 miles south of Jackson, the capital city of the State of Mississippi (the "State"),
approximately 160 miles north of New Orleans, Louisiana, and approximately 230 miles south of
Memphis, Tennessee.

Population

The population of the County has been recorded as follows:

1970 1980 1990 2000 2009"

19,947 23,441 23,953 27,639 27,920

SOURCE: Census Data at website: www.census.gov; September, 2010.
Government
The governing body of the County is the Board of Supervisors, which Board consists of

five members, each of whom is elected from a separate district or "beat". The current members
of the Board of Supervisors, elected for concurrent four-year terms, are as follows:

Position
Name Occupation Held Since
Curtis Skiffer Department of Corrections January, 2004
William "Pete" Lowery Timber Buyer, Retired January, 2004
Randy Moore Timber Buyer/Contractor January, 2008
Mickey Berry Contractor January, 2008
Harvey Blakeney Cattleman, Retired January, 2008

! Population estimate.



Transportation

Simpson County is served by U. S. Highway 49, which runs north and south, State
Highways 13 and 43, which also runs north and south, and State Highway 540, which runs east

and west.

The nearest commercial airport is the Jackson International Airport, which is located
approximately 35 miles north of the County. The nearest port is located on the Mississippi River

in the City of Vicksburg, Mississippi, approximately 75 miles northwest of the County.

Per Capita Income>

County as %
Year County Mississippi United States of U.S.
2008 $28,974 $30,383 $40,166 72%
2007 27,495 29,542 39,392 70
2006 25,809 28,006 37,698 68
2005 26,011 26,819 35,424 73
2004 24,983 25,157 33,881 74
SOURCE:  Bureau of Economic Analysis: Regional Economic Accounts at website:

www.bea.gov, 2004-2008; September, 2010.

% Per capita personal income was computed using Census Bureau midyear population estimates. Estimates for 2004-2008 reflect
county population estimates available as of April 2010.




Major Emplovers

The following is a partial listing of major employers in the County, their products or
services and their approximate number of employees:

Employer Employees Product/Service
Simpson County School District 759 Education
Millcreek Rehabilitation Center 600 Mental Health Services
Boswell Regional Center 570 Nursing & Convalescent Homes
Rehabilitation Centers 500 Rehabilitation Services
Wal-Mart 351 Department Store
Magee General Hospital 187 Hospitals
Pioneer Health Services 175 Hospital Services
Hillcrest Nursing Center 137 Nursing and Convalescent Homes
Simpson General Hospital 125 Hospital
Polk Meats 115 Meat-Retail
Tyson Foods, Inc. 80 Poultry Processing Plants
Howard Industries 55 Manufacturers
Real Pure Beverage Group LLC 32 Beverages-Manufacturers
Mylex International 31 Fuel Injectors

SOURCE: Office of the Chancery Clerk; September, 2010.



Unemplovment Statistic of County

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
January 11.1% 7.5% 5.4% 6.5% 6.3%
February 10.8 7.6 5.0 6.5 6.0
March 10.0 7.9 5.3 6.3 5.1
April 9.8 7.8 4.7 5.6 4.6
May 9.9 8.2 6.2 5.3 5.1
June 9.6 8.6 7.2 6.2 6.4
July 9.2 7.3 6.0 6.6
August 9.5 6.9 5.3 5.7
September 8.7 6.1 5.1 5.1
October 9.4 6.4 5.0 5.4
November 8.7 5.8 4.5 5.5
December 9.6 6.7 5.0 5.9
Annual Average 8.6% 6.1% 5.6% 5.7%

SOURCE: Mississippi Department of Employment Security: Labor Market Data at website:
www.mdes.ms.gov; September, 2010.




Employment Statistics

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
RESIDENCE BASED EMPLOYMENT
1. Civilian Labor Force 11,640 11,530 11,520 11,670 12,000
II.  Unemployed 1,000 700 650 660 750
Rate 8.6% 6.1% 5.6% 5.7% 6.3%
III. Employed 10,640 10,830 10,870 11,010 11,250
ESTABLISHMENT BASED EMPLOYMENT?
1. Manufacturing 190 220 250 310 260
II. Non-manufacturing 7,460 7,660 7,940 7,540 7,820
A. Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting 80 100 110 110 120
B. Mining 20 20 10 10 0
C. Utilities 50 60 50 50 50
D. Construction 270 340 350 350 340
E. Wholesale Trade 70 80 80 90 80
F. Retail Trade 960 990 1,000 1,000 1,060
G. Transportation & Warehousing 50 130 400 370 390
H. Information 50 50 50 50 40
1. Finance & Insurance 260 270 250 250 240
J. Real Estate, Rental & Leasing 60 70 70 60 70
K. Prof., Scientific & Technical Service 130 130 100 110 90
L. Management of Companies & Entertainment 10 10 10 10 10
M. Administrative Support & Waste Management 270 300 260 200 460
N. Educational Services 320 310 320 280 240
0. Health Care & Social Assistance 2,300 2,240 2,360 1,990 1,970
P. Arts, Entertainment & Recreation 10 10 10 10 10
Q. Accommodation & Food Service 580 600 590 590 560
R. Other Services (except Public Administration) 210 240 270 290 310
S. Government 1,760 1,710 1,650 1,720 1,780
Education 710 700 640 600 620

SOURCE: Mississippi Department of Employment Security: Annual Averages: Labor Force
and Establishment Based Employment 2001 Forward, Labor Market Information
Department at website: www.mdes.ms.gov; September, 2010.

3 Effective 2001, the establishment based amounts are presented using the NAICS classification system. Prior to 2001, the SIC
classification system was used. Amounts will not be comparable between SIC and NAICS.
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Retail Sales

State Fiscal Year
Ended June 30 Amount
2009 $276,083,969
2008 254,342,014
2007 267,211,003
2006 264,625,859
2005 228,024,128

SOURCE: Annual Reports for years indicated, Mississippi State Tax Commission;

September, 2010.

Educational Facilities

The Simpson County School District (the "District") serves the entire area of the County,
including the area in the Magee city limits. The District currently operates nine (9) schools; three
(3) elementary schools, two (2) middle schools, two (2) high schools, one (1) vocational center

and one (1) achievement center and employs approximately 759 people.

Enrollment figures for the District for the 2009-10 scholastic year and the four preceding

years are as follows:

Scholastic Year Enrollment
2009-10 4,274
2008-09 4,135
2007-08 4,288
2006-07 4,292
2005-06 4,253

SOURCE:  Mississippi Department of Education Office of Research and Statistics,
Mississippi  Assessment and Accountability Reporting System at website
www.orsap.mde.k12.ms.us; and Simpson County School District; September,

2010.




Assessed Valuation of the County”

TAX INFORMATION

Public
Assessment Real Personal Utility
Year Property Property’ Property Total
2009 $93,876,891 $48,284,310 $48,889,469° $191,050,670
2008 91,503,399 49,609,711 18,686,838 159,799,948
2007 89,451,415 49,580,646 11,207,069 150,239,130
2006 87,279,110 49,488,935 10,927,707 147,695,752
2005 85,878,781 47,190,865 11,157,463 144,220,109
SOURCE: Simpson County Chancery Clerk; September, 2010.

Procedure for Property Assessments

Assessed valuations are based upon the following assessment ratios:

(a) Real and personal property (excluding single-family owner-occupied residential real
property and motor vehicles, respectively), fifteen percent (15%) of true value;

(b) Single-family owner-occupied residential real property, ten percent (10%) of true value;
(c) Motor vehicles and public utility property, thirty percent (30%) of true value.

The 1986 Session of the Mississippi Legislature adopted House Concurrent Resolution
No. 41 (the "Resolution"), pursuant to which there was proposed an amendment to the
Mississippi Constitution of 1890 (the "Amendment"). The Amendment provided, inter alia, that
the assessment ratio of any one class of property shall not be more than three times the
assessment ratio on any other class of property.

The Amendment set forth five classes of property and the assessment ratios which would
be applicable thereto upon the adoption of the Amendment. The assessment ratios set forth in
the Amendment are identical to those established by Section 27-35-4, Mississippi Code of 1972,
as it existed prior to the Amendment, except that the assessment ratio for single-family, owner-
occupied residential real property under the Amendment is set at ten percent (10%) of true value
as opposed to fifteen percent (15%) of true value under previously existing law.

* The total assessed valuation is approved in September preceding the fiscal year of the County and represents the value of real
property, personal property and public utility property for the year indicated on which taxes are assessed for the following fiscal year’s
budget. For example, the taxes for the assessed valuation figures for 2009 will be collected starting in January, 2010 for the 2009-2010
fiscal year budget of the County.

* Personal property includes the assessed valuation of personal property, automobiles and mobile homes.

® The increase in assessed valuation for public utility property in 2009 is due to the construction of Gulf
South Pipeline that was completed in 2009.



Real and personal property valuations other than motor vehicles and property owned by
public utilities are determined by the County Tax Assessor. All taxable real property situated in
the County is assessed each year and taxes thereon paid for the ensuing year. Assessment rolls
of such property subject to taxation are prepared by the County Tax Assessor and are delivered
to the Board of Supervisors of the County on the first Monday in July. Thereafter, the
assessments are equalized by the Board of Supervisors and notice is given to the taxpayers that
the Board of Supervisors will meet to hear objections to the assessments. After objections are
heard, the Board of Supervisors adjusts the rolls and submits them to the State Tax Commission,
which examines them on receipt. The State Tax Commission may then accept the rolls or, if it
finds a roll incorrect in any particular, return the rolls to the Board of Supervisors to be corrected
in accordance with the recommendations of the State Tax Commission. If the Board of
Supervisors has any objections to the order of the State Tax Commission, it may arrange a
hearing before the Commission. Otherwise, the assessment roll is finalized and submitted to the
County Tax Collector for collection. The assessed value of motor vehicles is determined by an
assessment schedule prepared each year by the State Tax Commission. With minor exceptions
the property of public utilities is assessed each year by the State Tax Commission.



Tax Levy Per $1.000 Valuation’

2009-10 | 2008-09 | 2007-08 | 2006-07 | 2005-06

General Purposes 27.51 28.28 27.55 27.16 25.66
Co-Lin Maintenance 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Former State Levy as Authorized by Section
27-39-329; Co-Lin JC 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Pearl River Basin Development 0.25 0.26 0.28 0.27 0.28
Road Maintenance Fund 6.26 5.18 3.17 2.58 2.20
Bridge & Culvert Fund 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30
Refunding Bonds 2003 1.29 1.52 1.64 1.65 1.72
MBIA Bonds 0.72 0.88 0.92 0.89 0.92
Economic Development 1.00 1.17 1.21 1.21 1.25
1 Mill Trust Fund 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
School Maintenance 38.68 40.68 40.68 40.68 39.85
Co. Garbage/Rubbish 0.37 0.44 0.46 0.47 0.48
2004 Road and Bridge Bond 1.53 1.20 1.29 1.29 1.30
2004 Shortfall Note 0.00 0.00 0.00 .098 1.01

TOTAL - COUNTY-WIDE 86.91 88.91 86.50 86.48 83.97
Fire Departments 2.50 2.50 2.26 2.28 2.36
TOTAL LEVY 89.41 91.41 88.76 88.76 86.33

SOURCE: Simpson County Chancery Clerk; September, 2010.

7 Tax levy figures are given in mills.



Ad Valorem Tax Collections

Fiscal Year Ended Amount Difference
September 30 Amount Budgeted Collected Over/(Under)
2009 $6,418,390 $6,426,022 $ 7,632
2008 5,607,442 5,702,342 94,900
2007 5,582,369 5,680,892 98,523
2006 5,225,142 5,487,232 262,090
2005 5,132,665 5,220,012 87,347

SOURCE: Simpson County Chancery Clerk; September, 2010.

Procedure for Tax Collections

The Board of Supervisors is required under the Act and the Bond Resolution to levy
annually a special tax upon all taxable property within the County sufficient to provide for the
payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds. If any taxpayer neglects or refuses to
pay his taxes on the due date thereof, the unpaid taxes will bear interest at the rate of one percent
(1%) per month or fractional part thereof from the delinquent date to the date of payment of such
taxes. When enforcement officers take action to collect delinquent taxes, other fees, penalties
and costs may accrue. Both real property and personal property are subject to public tax sale.

Ad valorem taxes on personal property are payable at the same time and in the same
manner as on real property. Section 27-41-15, Mississippi Code of 1972, provides that upon
failure of the taxpayer to make timely payment, the tax collector of each county is authorized to
sell any personal property liable for unpaid taxes at the courthouse door of the county unless the
property is too cumbersome to be removed. Five days' notice of the sale in an advertisement
posted in three public places in the county, one of which must be the courthouse, is required.
Municipal tax collectors are required to follow any special ordinance adopted by a municipality
on personal property sales. Interest, fees, costs and expenses of sale are recoverable in addition
to the taxes delinquent. If sufficient personal property cannot be found, the tax collector may
make a list of debts due the taxpayer by other persons and sell such debts and is further directed
to distrain and sell sufficient other properties of the taxpayer to pay the delinquent taxes. Debts
sold may be redeemed within six months from the sale in the same manner as redemption of land
from tax sales.

Section 27-41-55, Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, provides that after the fifth day
of August in each year, the tax collector for each county shall advertise and sell all land in the
county on which all taxes due and in arrears have not been paid, as well as all land liable for
other matured taxes. The sale is held at the door of the courthouse of the county or any place
within the courthouse that the tax collector deems suitable to hold such sale, provided that the
place of such sale shall be designated by the tax collector in the advertisement of the notice of
tax sale on the last Monday of August following. The owner, or any person with an interest in
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the land sold for taxes, may redeem the land at any time within two years after the day of sale by
paying all taxes, costs, interest and damages due to the Chancery Clerk. A valid tax sale will
mature two years after the date of sale unless the land is redeemed and title will vest in the
purchaser on such date.

At the option of the tax collector, advertisement for the sale of such county lands may be
made after the fifteenth day of February in each year with the sale of such lands to be held on the
first Monday of April following. All provisions which relate to the tax sale held in August of
each year shall apply to the tax sale if held in April.

County and municipal taxes, assessed upon lands or personal property, are entitled to
preference over all judgments, executions, encumbrances or liens however created.

Reappraisal of Property and Limitation on Ad Valorem Levies

Senate Bill No. 2672, General Laws of Mississippi, Regular Session 1980, codified in
part as Sections 27-35-49 and 27-35-50, Mississippi Code of 1972 (the "Reappraisal Act"),
provides that all real and personal property in the State shall be appraised at true value and
assessed in proportion to true value. To insure that property taxes do not increase dramatically
as the counties complete reappraisals, the Reappraisal Act provides for the limit on increase in
tax revenues discussed below.

The statute limits ad valorem tax levies by the County subsequent to October 1, 1980, to
a rate which will result in an increase in total receipts of not greater than ten percent (10%) over
the previous year's receipts, excluding revenue from ad valorem taxes on any newly constructed
properties, any existing properties added to the tax rolls or any properties previously exempt
which were not assessed in the next preceding year. This limitation does not apply to levies for
the payment of the principal of and the interest on general obligation bonds issued by the County
or to certain other specified levies. The limitation may be increased only if the proposed
increase is approved by a majority of those voting in an election held on such question.

On August 20, 1980, the Mississippi Supreme Court rendered its decision in State Tax
Commission v. Fondren, 387 So.2d 712, affirming the decree of the Chancery Court of the First
Judicial District of Hinds County, Mississippi, wherein the State Tax Commission was enjoined
from accepting and approving assessment rolls from any county in the State for the tax year 1983
unless the State Tax Commission equalized the assessment rolls of all of the counties. Due to the
intervening passage of the Reappraisal Act, the Supreme Court reversed that part of the lower
court's decree ordering the assessment of property at true value (although it must still be
appraised at true value), holding instead that assessed value may be expressed as a percentage of
true value. Pursuant to the Supreme Court modification of the Chancellor's decree, on
November 15, 1980, the State Tax Commission filed a master plan to assist counties in
determining true value. On February 7, 1983, the Chancery Court granted an extension until July
1, 1984, of its previous deadline past which the State Tax Commission could not accept and
approve tax rolls from counties which had not yet reappraised. The County has completed
reappraisal.




Homestead Exemption

The Mississippi Homestead Exemption Law of 1946 reduces the local tax burden on
homes qualifying by law and substitutes revenues from other sources of taxation on the State
level as a reimbursement to the local taxing units for such tax loss. Provisions of the homestead
exemption law determine qualification, define ownership and limit the amount of property that
may come within the exemption. The exemption is not applicable to taxes levied for the
payment of the Bonds, except as hereinafter noted.

Those homeowners who qualify for the homestead exemption and who have reached the
age of sixty-five (65) years on or before January 1 of the year for which the exemption is
claimed, service-connected, totally disabled American veterans who were honorably discharged
from military service and those qualified as disabled under the federal Social Security Act are
exempt from any and all ad valorem taxes on qualifying homesteads not in excess of $7,500 of
assessed value thereof.

The tax loss resulting to local taxing units from properly qualified homestead exemptions
is reimbursed by the State Tax Commission. Beginning with the 1984 supplemental ad valorem
tax roll and for each roll thereafter, no taxing unit shall be reimbursed an amount in excess of
one hundred six percent (106%) of the total net reimbursement made to such taxing unit in the
next proceeding year.

Ten Largest Taxpavers

The ten largest taxpayers in the County for assessment year 2009 are as follows:

Taxpayer Assessed Valuation Taxes Collected
Gulf South Pipeline $37,610,759.00 $3,362,777.92
Entergy 3,557,644.00 318,088.94
Illinois Central Railroad 2,641,234.00 236,152.72
Wal-Mart 2,559,792.00 228,870.99
Southern Natural Gas 2,279,059.00 203,770.64
Bell South 2,243,862.00 200,623.69
Tyson Foods 1,519,091.00 135,821.94
Magee Warehouse 1,179,322.00 105,443.14
Howards 1,024,182.00 91,572.14
Weyerhaeuser 983,416.00 87,927.26
TOTALS $55,598,361.00 $4,971,049.38

SOURCE: Simpson County Tax Assessor; September, 2010.
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DEBT INFORMATION

Legal Debt Limit Statement

(as of September, 2010)

15% Limit 20% Limit
Authorized Debt Limit (Last Completed Assessment
for Taxation - $199,233,754) $29,885,063 $39,846,750
Present Debt Subject to Debt Limits 3,282,593 3,282,593
Margin for Further Debt Under Debt Limits $26,602,470 $36,564,157

Statutory Debt Limits

The County is subject to a general statutory debt limitation under which no county in the
State may incur general obligation bonded indebtedness in an amount which will exceed fifteen
percent (15%) of the assessed value of the taxable property within such county according to the
last completed assessment for taxation.

In computing general obligation bonded indebtedness for purposes of such fifteen percent
(15%) limitation, there may be deducted all bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued for
school, water and sewerage systems, gas, and light and power purposes and for the construction
of special improvements primarily chargeable to the property benefited, or for the purpose of
paying a county's proportion of any betterment program, a portion of which is primarily
chargeable to the property benefited. However, in no case may a county contract indebtedness
which, when added to all of its outstanding indebtedness, both bonded and floating, exceeds
twenty percent (20%) of the assessed value of the taxable property within such county.



Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Debt

Other Debt

(as of September, 2010)
Outstanding
Issue Date of Issue Principal
MBIA Bond® 03/20/96 $ 690,000
General Obligation Road and Bridge
Refunding Bonds 08/07/03 395,000
General Obligation Road and Bridge Bonds 10/01/04 2,175,000
Taxable General Obligation Bonds’ 5/26/09 712,593
TOTAL: $3,972,599
(as of September, 2010)
Outstanding
Issue Date of Issue Principal
Capital Leases 2000-2009 $658,283
Capital Improvements Revolving Loans 2000-2008 65,810
TOTAL: $724,093

¥This bond is and will be a general obligation of the County secured by (i) the assignment of a portion of the rental payments due
under the lease and (ii) the County’s forfeiture of up to twelve (12) months of its sales tax allocation and/or homestead exemption reimbursement;
and (ii) the avails of a direct tax to be levied annually without limitation as to rate or amount upon all taxable property within the geographical
limits of the County, but only in the event that the sources provided in item (i) and (ii) above are insufficient to provide for the payment of the
principal of the bond as the same falls due. Not subject to 15% or 20% debt limit.

? The County entered into a Supplemental payment Agreement with Southern Pine Electric Power Association, whereby the County
agreed to make monthly payments on the Bonds. The outstanding principal balance above reflects the outstanding balance as of September 15,




Annual Debt Service Requirements'’

Existing Debt

Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 375,000.00 $ 120,695.00 $ 495,695.00
2011 557,222.20 106,570.00 663,792.20
2012 572,222.20 89,282.50 661,504.70
2013 387,222.20 71,138.75 458,360.95
2014 397,222.20 60,945.00 458,167.20
2015 412,222.20 51,420.00 463,642.20
2016 422,222.20 41,495.00 463,717.20
2017 317,222.20 32,215.00 349,437.20
2018 327,222.20 23,575.00 350,797.20
2019 342,222.40 14,485.00 356,707.40
2020 265,000.00 4,902.50 269,902.50
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
Total $4,375,000.00 $616,723.75 $4,991,723.75

' Annual debt service requirement includes County's General Obligation MBIA Bond, dated 3/20/96. The MBIA Bond is not subject
to the County's 15% or 20% debt limit.



General Obligation Bonded Debt

FY Ended September 30

Issue 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
MBIA Bond (3/20/96)"' $795,000 $900,000 $1,000,000 $1,100,000 $1,200,000
General Obligation Road & Bridge
Refunding Bonds (08/07/03) 590,000 775,000 955,000 1,130,000 1,305,000
Negotiable Shortfall Note (9/29/04) -0- -0- 119,007 232,696 341,300
General Obligation Road & Bridge Bonds
(10/01/04) 2,250,000 2,320,000 2,385,000 2,445,000 2,500,000
Taxable Negotiable Note (6/11/08) -0- 776,100 -0- -0- -0-
General Obligation Bonds (5/26/09) 740,000 -0- -0- -0- -0-
TOTAL: $4,375,000 $4,771,100 $4,459,007 $4,907,696 $5,346,300

' MBIA Bond is not subject to County’s 15% or 20% debt limit.




Debt Ratios

FY Ended General Obligation General Obligation
September 30 Debt Debt to Assessed Value
2009 $4,375,000 2.28%
2008 4,771,100 2.98
2007 4,459,007 2.97
2006 4,907,696 3.32
2005 5,346,300 3.70
Underlying General Obligation Indebtedness
(as of August, 2010)
General
Current General Obligation
Assessed Obligation Bonded Debt
Municipality 2000 Population Valuation Bonded Debt Per Capita
Magee 4,200 $33,518,508 $3,525,000 $839.29
Mendenhall 2,555 $14,108,065
Current Assessed Total Limited
School District Valuation Obligation Bonded Debt
Simpson County School District $191,050,670 $4,918,654
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Meinbers of (he Board of Supervisers
Simpson Connty, Mississippi

We havc andited the accompanying financial staiements of the governmenial activities, the business-type
aclivilies, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining mnd information of
Simpson County, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended Seplember 30, 2009, which collectively comprise (he county’s
basic [nancial statements as listed in the lable of conlents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
couniy's management. Qur responsibility is 10 express opinions on these finaneial statements based on onr andit. We did
not audit the [inancial staiements of the Simpson County Hnman Resonrce Apgency, a eomponent unit, which represents
100% of the assets and revenues of the discretely presented comnponent unit. Those statements were andited by other
auditors whose report thereon has been furnished 10 ns, and our opiniouw, insofar as it relates to the amonnts included for
the aforcmcntioned coluponent unit, is based solely ou the report of the other auditors.

We condncted our audit in accordance with anditing standards geuerally accepted in the United States of
America and the siandards applicable to [inancial audils coniaimed in Government Auditing Standards, issned by the
Complroller General of the United Stales of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to
obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements are free of malerial misstatement. The financial
statemnents of the Hospital audited by other anditors, were audiled in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
An andit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence snpporting the amonnts and disclosnres in the financial
slatements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates tnade by
management, as well as evalnating the overall linancial stalement presenlation. 'We believe that our andit and the repon
of othcr andilors provide a reasonable basis for onr opinions.

In onr opitiion, based on our audit and the report of other andilors, the financial stalements referred 10 above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the povernmental activities, the discretely
preseuted component unit, each imajor fund and the aggrepale remaimng fund information of Siinpson County,
Mississippi, as ol Seplember 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and c¢ash flows, where applicable,
thereof Lor the vear then ended in conformity with accounling principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America.

[n accordauce with (zovernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repon dated May 31, 2010, on our
consideration of Simpson Connty, Mississippi's internal control over financial reportiug and on our tesis of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matiers. The purpose
ol that report is 1o describe the scope of our testing of imicmnal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
rcsults of that tesling, and not (o provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporiing or on compliance.
That report. is an intggral part of an andil perforined in accordance with Govermmnent Auditing Standards and shonld be
considercd in assessing the resulls of our audit.



Simpson County, Mississippi, has not presented Management’s Discussion and Analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Govermnental Accounting
Standards Board.

The Budgelary Comparison Schedules and corresponding notes are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are suppiementary information required by the Governmenltal Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited proccdures, which consisted principally of inquiries of managemenl regarding the methods of
measuremenl and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not andit the information
and express no opinion on it

Our audit was condncted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that colleclively
comprise Simpson County, Mississippi’s basic financial statcmments. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circalar A=133, Audits of States, Local Gavernments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is nol a required part of the
basic financial stalerments. Such information has been subjected to the auditing proeednres applied in the audit of the
basie financial staiements and, in our opinioen, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements lakeu as a whole.

o

/ - 7 .
/r,e»ﬁi,»f_s? A

Windham and Lacey, PLLC
May 31, 2010
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SIMPSON COUNTY
Slaternent of Nel Assels
Seplember 30, 2009

ASSETS
Cash
Property tax receivable

Accounts receivable {net of allowance for

uncollectibles of $620,374 )

Fines receivable (net of allowance for

uncolleclibles of $2,216,417)
Inlergovernmental receivables
Grants and contracls receivable
Other receivables
Capital assels:
Land and eonstruction in progress
Qiber caplial assets, net

Total Assels

LIABILITIES
Claims payable
Bank overdrafi
Accrucd salaries and withholdings
Intergovernmental pavables
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences
Other payables
[.ong-term liabilities
Due within one year:
Capital debt
Due 1n more than one vear:
Camtal debt
Total Liabilitics

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assers, nel of relaled debt

Restricred:

Expendable:

Debt service

Public safety

Pubhe works

LEconomic development
Unrestricled

Told Net Assels

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of (his stalement.

Exhibit 1
Componcat
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business type Human Resource
Activitics Aclivities Tolal Agency
5,983,392 168,502 6,152,294
6,704,744 6,704,744
202,826 202,826
664,532 664,532
409,946 409,946
77,055
2,791 2,791 17,037
2,231,050 2,231,056
49,447,445 559,137 30,006,582 8,104
65,443 906 930,865 606,374,771 102,196
579,301 33,005 612,596 107,357
114
3.925
209,897 209,897
6,714,744 6,714,741
213,054 23,267 236,361
72,059 72,035 15,637
578,6%% 578,65%
4,216,614 4216614
12,384,608 36,362 12,640,970 132,033
46,833,188 559,137 47,442,325 8,104
148,625 148,625
114,499 414,499
1,236,420 315,366 1,551,786
566,335 566,335
3,610,231 3,610231 (37.941)
52,859,298 874,503 53,733,801 (29837
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SIMPSON COUNTY Exhibil 3
Balance Sheet - Governmental IFunds

Seplember 30, 2009
Mayor Funds
Road Other Total
General Maintenance Governmental Governmental
TFunds Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash b 3,424,536 1,005,447 1,553,389 5,983,392
Property lax receivable 4,363,174 911,036 1,430,535 6,704,745
Fines receivable, net of allowance for
nicollectible of $2,226,417 664,532 664,532
Intergovernmental receivables 138,830 271,116 409,946
Other receivables 2,790 2,790
Due from otier funds 34,856 21,164 56,020
Toral Assets ¥ 8,593,882 1,951,339 3276204 13,821,423
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Clauns payable 3 111,925 87,609 379,967 579,501
Intergovernental payables 176,802 17,745 194 547
Due to other funds 71,370 T1.370
Deferred revenuc 5,037,706 911,036 1,430,535 7.379277
Other payables 72,059 72,059
Tatal Eiabililies 5,469 862 998 645 1,828.247 8,296,754
TFund balances:
Reserved for
Debt Scrvice 148,625 148,625
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund 3,124,020 3,124,020
Special Revenue Funds 952,694 1,299,332 2,252,026
Total Fund Balances 3,124,020 052,694 1,447,957 5,524 671
Taotal Liabililies and Fund Balances g 8,593 882 1,951,339 3,276,204 13,821,425

The notes 1o the financial statements are an inlegral part of this siatemenl.



SIMPSON COUNTY Exhibit 3-1
Reconcilabion of Governumental Funds Balance Sheet (o the Stalement of Nal Assels

Seplember 30, 2009
Amount
‘T'otal Fund Balance - Govermumental Funds 3 3,524,671
Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the Statewnent of Net Assets
arc different because:
Cupital assets are used in governmental aclivitics and are not [inancial resources end,
therefore, arc not reporied in the [unds, net of accumulaled depreciaton of 385,583,683 31,678,501
{(nher long-term assels are not available lo pay for current period expenditures and,
therelore, are delerred inthe fonds. 664,534
Long-term liabilitics are nol due and payable in the enrrent-period and,
therefore, are not reported in the [unds. {5,008,408)
Total Net Assets - Governmental Activilies b 32,839298

The notes te the financial statements are au integral part of this slatement.



SIMPSON COUNTY Lxhibit 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Yeuar Ended September 30, 2009
Major Funds
County-wide
Road Other Total
General Maintenance Governmemal Governmenlal
Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property laxes 3 3977767 598,416 1,212,735 5,588,918
Roud and bridge privilege laxes 311,711 311,711
Licenses, comrmssions and other revenue 232,822 14,706 247,528
Tines and forleilures 680,683 16,040 696,723
Intergovernmental revenues 938,635 682,065 1,379,045 2,999,743
Charges [or services 131,700 274,379 406279
nterest wncome 173,623 35,834 60,713 270,170
Miscellaneous revenues 124231 8,690 134,933 267,854
Tolal Revenues 6,059,461 1,636,716 3,092 751 10,788,928
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Generul government 2,534,320 10,113 2,544 133
Pullic safery 1,917446 968,837 2,886 283
Public works 2,093,374 924 847 3,020,321
Health and wellare 284,011 284011
Culture and recrention 315,934 975 316,909
Conservation of natural resources 97,833 97,833
Liconomie development and assistauce 13,745 726,774 740,523
Debl service:
Prineipal 27314 63,124 1,209,666 1,300,164
Interest 1,660 13,012 175,375 190,047
Paying agent fees 4,440 4,440
Total Expenditures 5,192,327 2,171,510 4,021,127 11,384,964
Excess nf Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 857,134 (534,754) (928,376) {596,036)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Long-lenn non-capital debt issued 433 8908 740,000 1,173,898
Transfers iu 89,298 86208
Translers out {74,298} (13,0003 (89,298)
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses {74,298) 433 R9% 814 298 1,173 898
Nel Changes 1n Fuud Balances 792,836 (100,896) £114,078) 577,862
IFund Balances - Beginning 2,331,184 1,033,590 1,362.035 4,946 809
Tund Balances - Endung 3 3,124,020 952,694 1,447 957 5824677

The notes to the financial slatements are an integral part ol (his statement.



SIMPSON COUNTY

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
I'und Balances of Governmental Funds 1o the Stalement of Activilies

For the Year Ended Seplamber 30, 2009

Net Changes 1n Fund Balances - Governmmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Acliviies
are different becanse:

Governmental Funds repord capilal outlays as expendilures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, (he cost of those assets i3 allocaled over their estimaled
uselul lives and reporied as depreciation expense. Thns, the change in nel assels
differs from Lhe ehange in [und balances by lhe amouvnt (hal capital ouilays of
51,719,317 cxceeded depreciation of $810,774 in the current period.

In the Statement of Activities, only gains and losses [rown the sale of capital assers
are reporleed, wherens in the Governmental Funds, proceeds from he sale of
capital assets increase (inancial resources. Thns, the chanpe [n net assets differs
from the change in fund balances by the amount of the net loss of 32,884,

Fine revenue recogmzed on the moditied accrual basis in the funds during the
current year is increased becayse prior year recognition would have been regnired
on the Stalement of Activities nsing the full-acerual basis of accounting.

Taeht proceeds provide enrreut [inancial resonrees to Governmental Funds, hut
issuing cebt increases long-term liabilities ju the Stalement of Net Assets. Repayinent
of debl principal is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the repaviment
reduees long-term linbilities in the Stalcment of Net Assets. Thus, the ehange in
net assets ditters from the change in fund balances by the amount that debt
repayments of $1,300,164 exceeded debt proceeds of $1,173,898,

Uiuder the modiiled accrual basis of aeconnting used in the Governrnental Funds,
expendilures are not recognized (or transactions thal are nol normally paid with
cxpendable avarlable inancial resourees. However, in (he Staternent of Aclivities,
whicli 13 presented on the accrual basts, expenses and liabilities are reported
regardless ol when fingncial resources are available, In addibion, interesl on
long-lerm debl is recognized under the modified acerual basis of accounting when
due, raiber than as it ucerues. Thus, the change in ne! assels differs from the change
in fund balances by the increase in compensated absences.

Change in Nel Assels of Goverunenlal Activilies

The notes Lo the fluancial statements are an integral part of this stalement.

b3

EXITIBIT 4-1

Amount

577,862

908,543

(2.884)

(78,975)

126,266

(32.605)

1,498,207



SIMPSON COUNTY
Statement of Nel Assels - Proprielary Fund
Seplember 30, 2009

ASSETS
Currenl asseis:
Cash
Accounts recetvable (net of allowance [or
uncollectibics of $620,374)
Total Curent Assels
Noncurrent asseals:
Capual assets, net
Tolal Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITTES
Current liabilities:
Claims payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent habilities:
Cotupensated absences payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capilal assets, net of related deli
Unreswicted {deficit)

Public Works

Total Net Assels

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 5

Business-type
Aclivities -

Enterprise Fund
Solid Waste

TFund

168,502

202 826
371,728

—_—
559,137

559.137
930,865

33,095
33,095

23,267
23,207
559,137
315,366

874,503



SIMPSON COUNTY

Staicment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Asscts -

Proprietary Fnnd
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Operaling Revennes
Charges for scrvices
Other operating cash receipts
Tolul Operating Revennes

Operating Expenses
Pereonal services
Contractual services
Malerials and supplies
Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenscs

Operaling Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revennes {Expenses)
Interesi income
State grantg
Net Nonoperating Revenne ( Expenses)
Net Income (Loss) before Transfers
Changes m Net Assels

Net Assels - Beginming

Net Assets - Ending

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integra! part of this statement,

12

Fxhibil 6

DBnsiness-tyvpe
Acliviues -
Enlerprisc Fund
Solid Waste
Fund

716,349
400
716,949

341,897
203,200
131,638

87,203
763,938

(46,989)

10,981
16,380
27,361

(15,628)

(19,628)

394,132

§74,304



SIMPSON COUNTY
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund
For the Year linded September 30, 2009

Cash Flows Lrom Operaling Activilies
Receipls [rom customers
Paymeuts to suppliers
Payments (o employees
Other operating cash receipls
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activilies
Operating granis received
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financimg Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capilal assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Relaled Financmg Activities

Cash Flows From vesting Activities
Interest on deposils
Net Cash Provided ( Used) by Investing Aelivilies

Net increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents al Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Recanctliation of Cperating Income (Loss) to New Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activilics:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operaling income to nel casit
provided (used) by operatmg activihies:
Depreciation expensce
Changes 1n assets and liabililies,
{Increase) decrease 1 accounts receivable
Increase (decreasc} in claims payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated abscuces liability
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Aclivites

The notes to the [inancial siatenents are aw integral part of this staternent.

3
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Exhibit 7

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Solid Waste
Fund
707293
(333.936)
(339,565)
400
34,162

16,380
16,380

(118,456)
{118,456)

10,981
10,981
(56,903)

225,805

168,902

3 {46,989)

£5

87,203

(9,236)
902
2,332
81,181

34,192

k3



SIMPSON COUNTY
Statement of Fiduciary Assels & Liabilities
Seplember 30, 2009

ASSETS

Cash

Due from other [unds
Total Assels

LIABILITIES
Amounts held in custody for others
Intersovernmental payables

Total Liabilities

The notes Lo the financial stafemnents are an inlegral part of this statement.
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FEadubit 8

Agency
Funds

119,628
15,350

134578

15,648
119330

134,978



SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes o Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significani Accounting Policies.

A,

Financial Reporting Entity.

Simpson County is a political subdivision of the State of Mississippt. The eounty is governcd by an elected
five-member Board of Supervisors. Acconnting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require Simpson County 1o preseut these financial statements on the primary government and its
component unils which have significant operational or finaneial relationships with (he couuty.

State law pertaining to county government provides for the independent election of county officials. The
following elocted and appointed officials are all part of the county legal entity and therefore are reported as
part of the primary government financial statements.

. Board of Supervisors

. Chancery Clerk

. Circuit Clerk

. Justice Court Clerk

- Purchase Clerk

. Tax Assessor-Collector
. Sheriff

Tndividual Component Unit Disclosures.

Blended Component Units

Cerain component units, although legallv separate from the primary government, are nevertheless so
intertwined with the primary govermment that they are, in snbstance, the same as the primary government.
Therefore, these component nnits are reported as if they are part of the primary government. The following
component unit’s balances and transactions are blended with the balances and transactions of the primary
gsovernment.

Simpson Connty Econotnic Development District is a legally separate entity organized
under Seclion 19-5-99, Miss. Code Ann. (1972). lts purpose is 1o foster, encouzrage and
facilitate economic development in the county. The entity's board of trustees is
composed of 11 wncnbers appointed by the connty board of supervisors. The county
funds the entity through a 1.17 mill tax levy.

Discretely Presented Componemt Units

The eompongnt umils colnmns in (he finaneial statements inclnde he financial dat of the following
component units of the county. They are reported in a separate column 1o emphasize that they are legally

separate from the county. The members of the governing body of the component unit is appointed by the
county Board of Supervisors.

Simpson County Human Resource Ageucy was established in 1976 10 administer the programs of
stale and federal ageneics and to work with the poor, public and private sectors to identify and try
to eliminate the causes of poverty within Silmpson Connty. This agency is partially suppotted by
the Board of Snpervisors of Simpson County whe alse appoint the board of directors.

Basis of Presentation.

The county’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a Statement of
Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and fund financial statements, wlich provide a detailed level of
financial information.



SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes 10 Financial Siatements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Governmenl-wide Financial Statements:

The Staiement of Net Assets and Statement of Aclivities display information concemning the county as a
whole. The statemenls inclnde all nonfidnciary activities ol the primnary government and its conponent
nnits, For the most par, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these stalements.
Governmental activities are gencrally financed throngh taxes, mtergovernmental revennes and other
nonexchange revennes and are reporied separately [rom bnsiness-type activities. Bnsiness-type activities
rely mainly on fees and charges for support. The primary government is reporied separately from certain
legally separate component nnits for which the primary governineut is financially acconntable.

The Statement of Nel Assets presents the finaneial eondition of the governmental activities and
business-lype activities of the county at vear-end. The Government-wide Statement of Aclivities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revennes for each function or program of the county’s
govermmnenlal activities and business-type aclivities, Direcl expenses are those that are spceifically
associated with a service, program or department and therefere, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenucs inclnde charges paid by the recipieni of the goods or services offered by the
prograrm, grants and contributions that are restricted lo meeting the operational or capital requircments of a
particular program. Taxes and other revenues not ¢lassified as program revenues, are presented as general
revenues of the county, with certain limited exceplions. The comparison of direet expenses with program
revenues identifies the extent to which each busincss-type activities or governmenial function is
self-financing or draws from the generai revennes of the county.

Fund Financial Statemeuts:

Fund financial statlements of the county are organized inlo finds, each of which is considered to be separate
acconnling entitics. Each fund is accounted for by providing a scparate set ol sclf-balancing acconnis thai
conslitute its assets, liabilities, fnnd equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized inlo
governmental, proprielary and fidneiary. Major individual Governmental Funds and major individua!
Enterprise Funds are reported as separate colnmns iu the fund fivaucial statements. Nonmajor funds are
ageregated and presented in a single column.

Measuremem Focus aud Basis of Aceounting.

The Government-widc, Proprietary Funds and Fidnciary Funds (exclnding agency funds) financial
stateinents are presented nsing the econoinic resources measurement focus and the accrmal basis of
accounting. Revemues are recognized when earned and expenses arc recorded when the liability is incurred
or cconomic asset used, regardless of when the related eash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized
as revenue in the year for wliich they are levicd. Shared revenues arc recognized when the provider
govermnent recognizes the liability to the county. Grants arc recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements have becn satisfied. Agency funds have no measurement focus, but use the acernal
basis of accounting,

The county’s Proprctary Funds apply all applieable Governmeutal Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncemenis and enly the followiug pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, nnless
those pronouncements corlicl with or contradict GASB pronouncements; Finaneial Accounting Staudards
Board (F ASB) Statcments and Interpretations, Aesonnting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Rescarch Bulletius of the Comimiiliee on Acconnting Procedure,

The revenues and expenses of Proprielary Funds are classified as operating or nonoperating. Operaling

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in counection with a Proprietary Fund s
primary operations. All other revennes and expenses are reported as nonoperating.
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STMPSON COUNTY

Notes to Financial Stalements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Governmental financial statements are presented using a current financial resources measuremeut focus and
the modificd aeerual basis of aecounting. Revenues are recogmized in the aeecunting period when they are
both measurable and available to finance operations during the year or to liquidate liabilities existing at the
cnd of the vear. Available nieans collected in the cuurent period or witlnn 60 days afier year-end to
liquidate liabilities existing at the end of the year. Measurable means knowing or being abie to rcasonably
estimate the amount. Expenditnres are recognized in the accounting period when the related fund Uabilities
are incurred. Debt service expendilures and expenditures rclated to compensated absences and claitns and
judgments, are recognized only when paymenl is due. Property taxes, state appropriations and federal
awards are all eonsidered to be suseeptible to accrnal and have been recognized as revenues of (he current
fiscal period.

The county reports the following major Governmental Funds:

General Fund - This fund is used 10 accounl for all activities of the general govermuent for which a sepamic
fund has oot been established.

Conntywide Road Maintenance Fund - This fund is nsed to aecount for moiries from specific revenue
sources that are restricted for road maintenance,

The couniy reports the following major Proprietary Fond:

Garbage and Solid Waste Fund - This fund is used to account for the county’s activities of disposal of solid
wasle within the county.

Additioually, the connty reports the following fund types:

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used 1o aceount for the procceds of specific revenue sources
{other than for major capital projects) that are legally resiricted o expendilures for specified purposes.
Special Revenue Funds accounl for, among others, certam federal grant programs, taxes levied with
statutorily defined distributions and other resonrces restricied as (o purpose.

Debl Service Funds - These funds are used to acconnt for the accumulation of resources for, and the
paymenl of, general long-term debt prineipal, intercst and related costs,

Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial resources 1o be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital faeilities. Such resources are derived principally (rom proceeds
of general obligation bond issues and federal grants,

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Enterprise Funds - These funds are nsed o aceount for those operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private bnsiness enlerprises or where the eounty has decided that periodic determination
of revenucs earned, expenses incurred and/or net income 1s necessary for managemenl accountability.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Agency Funds - These funds acconnt for various laxes, deposits and other mouics collected or held by the
county, acting in the eapaciry of ant agent, for distribulion to other governmental units or designaicd
beneficiaries.

17



SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Septetnber 30, 2009

Acconnt Classifications.

The account classifications nsed in the financial statements conform to the broad classifications
recommended in Governmenial Accounting, Auditing ond Financial Reporfing as issned in 2005 by (he
Govermunent Finance Officers Associalion.

Depasits and nvestments.

Stale law authorizes the connty to invest in interest bearing ime certificates of deposit for periods of
{onrteen days to one year with depositories and in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, State of Mississippi, or
any eounty, numnicipality or schiool distriet of this state. Further, the conniy may invest in ccriain
repurchase agreemnents.

Cash includes cash on hand, denand deposits, all centifieates of deposit and cash equivalenis, which are
short-tern lighly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash {generally three months or less).
Investments in governmenial securities are stated at fair valne. However, the connty did not invest in any
governmental securitics during (he fiscal year.

Receivables.

Receivables are teparied nct of allowances for uncollcetible acconnts, where applicable.

[uterfund Transactions and Bafances.

Transactions between funds (hat arc representative of short-term lending/borrowing arrangements and
transactions that have not resulled in the actual transfer of cash at the end of the fiseal year are referred to
as "dne to/from other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within povernmental
activitics are eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets.

Capital Assets.

Capilal acquisiticn and construclion are refleeted as cxpenditures in Governmental Fund stateinents and the
related assels are reported as capital assets in the (applicable) governmental or bnsiness-type activities
column in the government-wide financial statemments. All purchased capilal assets arc stated af historical
cost where records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no records exist. Capital asscts
incInde signifieant amonnts of infrastucture which have been valned at estimated historical cost. The
estimated historical cost was based on replacetnent cost multiplied by the consumer price index implicit
price deflator for the year of acquisition. The extent lo which capital assets, other than infrastrueture, costs
have been estimated and the methods of estimation are not readily available. Donaled capital assels are
rceorded at estimated fair markel value at the Limne of donation. The costs of nomial mamienance and
repairs Lhat do not add to the value of assets or materially extend their respeetive lives are not capitalized;
however, improvements are capilalized [nierest cxpenditures arc not capitalized on cupital assers.

Governmental accounting and finaucial reporting standards allow governments weeting certain eriteria to
clect not to report major geucral infrastructure assels retroactively. Sitmpson County meets this criteria and
has elccted to report general infrastructure assels aequired after Scptewiber 30, 1980 ou the govermnent-
wide financial statements. Current year geueral infrastruclure assets are reported on the goverument-wicle
finaucial statements. General infrasiructure assels include ail roads and bridges and other infrastructure
agscts acqnired subsequent io October 1, 1980,
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes to Financial Stalcments
For the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2009

Capital assets acquired or consiructed for Proprietary Fund operalions are capitalized al cost in (he
respecitve funds in which they are utilized. No inleresl is capitalized on self-constructed assets becanse
noncapitalization of interest does not have a material cffect on the connty's financial statements. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the timc of donation.

Capitalization thresholds (dollar valne above which asset acquisitions are added to the capilal asset
accounts) and cslimated useful lives are used to report capilal assets in the governmeni-wide statements and
Propriclary Funds. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis for all assets, excepl land. A full
year’s depreciation expense is taken for all purchases and sales of capital assets during the year. The
following schednle details those thresholds and estimated useful lives:

Capitalization Estimated
Thresholds Useful Life

Laud 5 0 N/A
Infrastruchire 0 20-50 years
Bnildings 30,000 40 years
Tinprovements other than bnildings 23,000 20 years
Mabile equipment 3,000 5-10 years
Furniture and equipineni 5,000 3-7 vears
Leascd property under capital leases * *

* Leascd property capitalization policy and eslimated useful life will correspond wilh the amonnts for
the asset classification, as listed above.

Long-term Liabililies.

Long-lerm liabilities are the unmatured principal of bouds, loans, notes or olher forns of noncnrreni or
long-term general obligation indebtedness. Long-term liabilities are not linited 1o liabilities from debt
issnances, but may also includc liabilities on lease-purchasc agreements and other comrnitments,

In the government-wide fingncial stalements and in the Proprhetary Fnnd in the fund financial slatements,
long-term debt and other long-terin obligations arc rcported as liabilities in the applicablc governmenial
aclivilies, business-type activitics or Proprietary Funds Staiement of Net Assets.

Eqnity Classificalions.

Government-wide Financial Stalements:

Equily is classified as nel assels and displayed in thrce compenents;

Invesied in capilal assels, net of related debt - Consists of capital asseis including resuricied capiai assels,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the oustanding balances of any bonds, notes or other
borrowings attributable to the acqnisition, construction or improvement of thosc assets.

Restricted net assets - Cousists of net asscts with constraints placed on the use either by external groups
snch as credilors, gramors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governinents; or law throngh

conslitutional provisions or cnabling legislation.

Unrestricted net asscts - All other net asscts not mceting the definition of “restricted” or “invesied ih capilal
asscts, net of rclated debt.”
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes o Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Fund Financial Statcmenls:

Governmmental fund cquity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is classified as reserved or
unreserved with unreserved classified as designated and undesignated.

Unreserved fnnd balance represents the amonni available for budgeting future operations. Reservalions of
mnd balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally sepregated for a specific purpose.

Property Tax Revenues.

Nuinerous statntes exist under which the Board of Snpervisors may levy property taxes. The selection of
authorities is made based on the objectives and responsibililies of the connty. Restrictions associated with
property lax levies vary with the statutory anthority. The amonnt of increase in certain properly taxes is
limited by state law. Generally, this restriciion provides that these tax levies shall prodnce no more than
110% of the amount which resnlted from the assessmenis of the previons vear.

The Board of Supervisors, cach v¢ar at a meeling in Sepiember, levies property taxes for the ensuing fiscal
ycar which bepins on October 1. Real property taxes become a lien on Jannary 1 ol the cnrrent year, and
personal property taxes become a lien on March | of the current year. Taxes on both real and personal
propenty, however, are due on or before February 1 of the next sncceeding year. Taxes on motor vchicles
and mobile homes become a lien and are dne in (he month that coincides with the monith of original
purchase.

Aceounting principles gencrally accepted in the United Stares of America require property laxes 1o be
recogmized at the levy date if ineasurable and available. All property taxes are recognized as revenue in the
year for which they are levied. Motor vehicle and mobile home taxes do not meet the measurability and

colleclibility criteria for property lax recognilion because (he lien and duc date cannot be established until
the date of original purchase oceurs.

lmergovernntental Revenues in Governmental Fninds.

Intergovernmental revenues, consisting of grants, entitlements and shared revenues, are nsnally recorded in
Govermnental Funds when measurable and available. However, the “available” criterion applies lor cenitin
fcderal grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made becausc expenditnre is the prime factor
for delermining eligibility. Similarly, if eost sharing or matehing reqoirements exisy, revenue recognition
depends on complianee with these requirements.

Compensaled Absences.

The connty has adopred a policy of eompensation for acenmulated unpaid employee personal leave. No
payment is anthorized for accrued major medieal leave. Accounling prineiples gencrally accepted in the
United States of America require accrimal of accuinuolated unpaid employee benefils as long-lerm liabilines
in the govermnent-wide financial statements and Proprietary Funds financial statements. In fuud financial
stalements, Govermnenlal Fnnds report the eotnpensated absence liahility payable only if the pavable has
marured, for exainple an employee resigns or retircs.
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes to Fipancial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

(2) Prior Period Adjusunent.

Cownponent Unit.

Net assets were adjnsted by $1,635 to wrile off a prior year acconnis receivable that will nol be received by the
Agency. This adjustunent had no effect on the resnlis of the cnrrent vear aclivities; however, the cumulative effect
deceases net asscis by $1,633.

{3 Deposils.

The carrying amnounl ol the county's tolal deposits with fiuancial institulions at September 30, 2009, was

$6,271,922, and the bank balance was $6,519,546. The collateral for public enlities’ deposits in [inancial
institutions is lield in the name of the State Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi Siate
Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-3, Miss. Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s funds
are protecied throngh a collateral pool administered by the Siate Treasurer. Financial institutious holding deposits of
public funds nimst pledge securities as collateral against those deposils. In the event of failure of a [inancial
institution, securities pledged by that institution would be lignidated by the State Treasurer to replace the pnblic
deposits nol covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporalion.

Cnstodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Cnslodial credil risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a [inancial
institution, the eonnty will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
putside party. The eounty does not have a formal policy for cuslodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State
Treasnrer manages that risk on behalf of the county. Dcposits above FDIC coverage are collatcratized by the

pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi Stale Treasurer on behall of
the county.

Component Unit.
The Situpson Connty Huinan Resonrce Agency had a cash overdrafi of $114 at Seplember 30, 2009.

The Agency maintains its cash balances in one financial institntion. The balances are insured by (he Federal Deposit
Insnrance Corporation up to $250,000. At Sepiember 30, 2009, the Agency’s cash balances were totally insured.

) [nterfund Transactions and Balances.

The lollowing is a summary of interfund balances at September 30, 2009:

A, Duc From/To Qther Funds:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund ___ Amouni
Other governmental nds General Fund 3 21,164
Road Fond Geueral Fund 34,836
Agency funds General Fund 15,350
Total & 71,370

Amonnts listed are the tax revenues, juslice court and cirenit elerk fees collecled in
September, 2009, but not settled until Oclober, 2009,
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Motes to Finanegial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

B. Transfers In/Out:
Transfcr In Transfer Oot Amount
Other governmental {unds Other governmental funds 15,000
Other governmenlal fiinds General Fund 74,298
Tolal 89,298

The purposc of these transfers was to provide funds for bndgeted items. The transfers

were routine in nature and consistent with the fund making the transfer.

[ntergovernmental Receivables.

Inlergovemmental reccivables at Seplember 30, 2009, consisied of the following:

Deseription

Legislative lag credil
Department of Public Satety
Mississippt Development Authornity

‘fotal

Capital Assets.

Amount
00,300
94,192

225454

409,946

The following is a summary of capital assets aclivity Tor the vear ended September 30, 2009;

Governmental activities:

Non-tepreciable capuital gssets:
Land
Construclion in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Maobile eqnipment
Furniture and equipment
[Leased property under capital leases
Inlrastroclure
Tolal depreciable capual assets

Less accumnulated depreciation for
Buildings
Mobile equipment
Fumiture and equipimeni
Leased property under capital leases
Infrastmicture

Total accuniulated depreciation

Totai depreciable capital assels, net

Batance Balance
Oct. 1,2008  Addilions Deletions  Adjusiments Sept. 30, 2009
§ 1,600,659 8,400 1,609,059
621,997 621,997
1,600,659 630,397 0 0 2,231,056
3815375 52,735 5,868,110
3439722 221,112 (14,140) 3,646,694
860,499 110,464 (14,695) 936.268
68,348 433,898 502,246
128,571,619 0,711 128 842,630
138,753,863 1,088,920 (28,835) 0 139,815,848
3,174,085 67,430 3,241,519
2,162,739 262,562 {12,726) 2412,575
639,790 134,844 (13,225) 761,409
12,304 45,204 37,508
83,394,758 300,734 83,895,492
89,583,680 810,774 (23,931) 0 90,368,503
49,172,183 278,146 (2,884) 0 49 447,445
908,543 (2,884) 0 51,678,501

Governmental activitics capital assels, net § 50,772,842
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Dusiness-lype activilies:

Dalance Balance
Oct. 1, 2008 Addilions Deletions Adjnstments Sept. 30,2009

Depreciabie capital agsets:

Buildinps b 164,260 164,260
Mobile equipment 894,986 118,456 81,303 1,094.747
Leased property under capital leases 81,305 {81,305
Tolal depreciable capilal assats 1,140,551 118456 0 0 1.259.007
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 32,860 3,286 36,146
Mobile equipiment 350,535 76,5949 36,590 663,724
Leased properly under capital leases - 29272 7,318 {36,590)
Total accurnuiated depreciation 612067 87,203 ( 0 o599 870
Total depreciable capital assets, nel 527,884 31,23 0 0 359,137
Business-fype activities capital assets, nel § 527,884 31,253 0 (] 359137

Component Unit:
Simpson County Human Resource Agency

Depreciable capilal assels:

Mobile equipment 3 440,145
Fumiture and cquipment 4,396
Tolal depreciable capital assels 444,541

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Mobile equipment

436,437
Tonal accumulated depreciation 436437
Compotieut Unit eapital assets, nel I 8104

Adjustments inelude transfer ol commpleted projects from eonstmclion in project and addition of land owned by the Simpson
County Eeonomic Development District.
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes 1o Financial Slatements
For the Year Endcd September 30, 2009

Deprccialion expense was charged to (he following functions:

Governmental activities;

General governinent 3 69,444
Public safely 272,597
Pnblic works 465,283
Health and welfare 3,448
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 5 810,774

Business-type activities:
Public works b 87,203

Compenent Unit
Homan Resonrce Agency 3 10,217

Commitmenls with respect to nnfinished capilal projects at Seprecmber 30, 2009, consisted of (he following:

Remaining
Financial Expected Date
Descriplion of Comnmitment Commilinent of Comnpletton
Industrial Park 3 125,000 February, 2010

Claims and Judgments.
Risk Financing.

The connty finances its exposnre te risk of loss related to workers' compensation for injuries to its employees
through the Mississippi Public Entity Workers' Compensalicn Trust, a poblic entity risk pecl. The connty pays
premiums to (he pooi for its workers' compensation insurance coverage, and the pariicipation agreemen! provides
thal the poo! wyill be self-snstaining (hrough member premiums. The retention for the pool is $1,000,000 for each
accident and complciely covers statutory limils sel by the Workers' Compensation Comunission. Risk of loss is
remote for ¢laims exceeding the pool's retention liability. However, the pool also has calastrophic reinsurance
covcrage for statutory limits above the pool’s retention, provided by Safety National Casualty Corporation, effeetive
from January 1, 2007, to January 1, 2008. The pool may make an overall supplemential assessiment or declare a
refnnd depending on ihe loss cxperience of all the entities il insures.
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes 1o Financial Siatements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

(8) Operaiing Leases.
As Lessor:

The county receives income from property it leases under noncancellable operaling leascs. Total incoimne from such
leascs was $45,000 for the year ended Scptember 30, 2009, The future mimimum lease receivables for these leases
are as follows:

Operaling Leases:

Year Ended September 30 Amount
2010 $ 43,000
2011 45,000
2012 43,000
2013 45,000
2014 45,000
2015-2018 180,000
Tolal Minimum Payments Required § 103,000

(%) Capital Leases.
As Lessee:

Tlhe connty is obligated for the following capital assels acqnired throngh capital leases as of September 30, 2009:

Governmen(al
Asser; Activilies
Machinery and cqnipment 3 502,246
Less: Accumulated deprecialion (57,508)
Total ) 434 738

_—

The following is a schednle by vears of the total payments due as of Seplember 30, 2009:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Tnicrest
2010 $ 54 767 11,347
2011 46,203 10,406
2012 303,126 1,591
2013

Total 3 404,091 23,34




SIMPSON COUNTY

Noles Lo Finaneial Statements
For the Ycar Ended September 30, 2009

{10) Long-tenn Debt.

Dcbt ontstanding as of September 30, 2009, consisied of the following;

Final
Amonnt Interest Matunity
Description and Purpose _Outstanding Rate Dale
Governmenial Aetivities:
A. Geueral Obligation Bonds:
Quality Foods MBIA Bond $ 795,000  2.00% 03/01/2016
Road and Bridge Bonds Series 2003 590,000 3.00% 04/01/2012
Road and Bridge Bends Series 2004 2,175,000 3.84% 10/01/2019
Indnstnal Development Bonds of 2009 740,000  0.00% 03/01/2009
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 4,300,000
B. Kubota tractor with boorn nower $ 9,998 4.08% 02/01/2010
2 Calerpillar Moror graders 394,093 3.17% 10/28/2013
Total ) 404,091
C. Other Loans:
CAP Loan- fire (ruek £ 7,547 3.00% 1/0 112010
CAP Loan- fire truek 12,056 3.00% 120172009
CAP Loan- fire tntck 71,621 2.00% 06/01/2018

Total Other Loans $ 91,224

Annual debt serviee reqniremnents 1o maturity for the following debt reporied iu the Statement of Nel
Assets are as follows:

Govermnenlal Aetivities:

General Obligation Bonds Qther Loans
Year Ending September 30 Prineipal Interesi Principal Imerest
2010 $ 497 407 115,894 26,5330 1,582
2011 567,222 99 331 8,527 1,210
2012 5822 81,282 7,961 1,652
2013 397,222 66,745 8,123 890
2014 407,222 57.443 8,286 727
2015-2019 1,848,705 142 340 31,797 1,211
Tolal 5 4,300,000 563,055 91,224 6,672

Legal Debt Margiu - The amound of debt, excluding specific exermpted debt, thal can be incurred by the county is
limited by state statute. Total outstanding debi during a year can be uo greater than 13% of assessed value of the
taxable property within the eounty, aceording Lo the then last completed assessment for taxation. However, the
limitalion is increased to 20% whenever a connry issnes bonds to repair or replace washed out or collapsed bridges

on the public roads of the eounty. As of September 30, 2009, the amonnt of outsianding debt was eqnal to 2.69% of
the latest property assessinents,
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

The following is a sumimary of changes it Jong-term liabilities and obligations for the year ended
September 30, 2009:

Amount dug

Balance New Balance witlin ong
Oct. 1, 2008 Dcbl Paymenls Sept. 30, 2009 vear
Governmental Activilics;
Compensated absences % 180,489 32.605 213,094
Genceral obligation bonds 3,923,000 740,000 365,000 4,300,000 497 407
Capital leases 33317 433,898 63,124 404,091 54,762
Other loans 963,264 872,040 01,224 26,530
Toral 5 5,102,070 1,206,503 1,300,164 5,008,409 578,699
Bnsiness-{ype Activities:
Compensated abscnces  § 20,935 2,332 23,267
Toial 3 20,935 2,332 -0 23,267 0

Conlingencics.

Federal Grants - The connty has received federal grants for specific pnrposes that are snbject to andit by the grantor
agencies. Entillemncnts to these resonrces are generally conditional npon compliance with the terms and conditions
of granl agrecments and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resonrces for allowable
purposes. Any disallowance resnlting fromm a grantor andit may become 2 liability of the connty. Accordingly, no
provision for any liability that may resnli has been recognized in the county's finaneial statements.

Litigation - The county is party to legal proceedings, many of which occur in the normal course of governmental
operations. Il is nor possible al the present time to estimale uliimate onlcome or liability, if any, of the county with
respeet 1o the varions proceedings. However, (he county's legal connsel believes that ultfinate liability resulting
fromn these lawsnits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the county.

Joinl Ventures.
The county participaies in the following jeint veninres:

Simpson Connty is a parlicipant with Rankin, Scoti and Smith Connties in a joint venture, authorized by

Section 39-3-9, Miss. Code Ann. {1972), lo operate the Central Mississippi Regional Library System. The joint
venture was created to provide free library service to the pnblic and is governed by a five-member board of which
two members are appointed by Rankin County and one member each from the other threc countics. By contraciual
agrecment, the county’s appropriation 10 the joinl venture was $140,831 in fiscal vear 2009. Complete financial
stateruents for the Centrat Mississippi Regional Library System can be oblained from the following address;

104 Office Park Drive, Brandon, MS 39042,

Simpson County is a parlicipant with the Cities of Magee and Mendenhall iu a jeint venture, authorized by

Section 17-17-307, Miss. Code Ann. (1972), 10 operate the Sonth Central Regional Solid Waste Authority. The
joint venture was created to provide mbbish wastc disposa!l for the residents of Siinpson County and is governed by
a seven-member board appointed by the Board of Snpervisors and Board of Aldermen; three by Simpson County,
and two each by the Cities of Magee and Mendenhall. The county’s appropriation to the joint venture was $60,936
n fiscal vear 2002, Complete financial statements for the South Central Mississippi Regional Solid Waste
Authority can be oblarned from the following address: P. O. Box 487, Mendenhall, MS 39114
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Simpson County s a partieipant wilh the City of Magee in a joint venture anthorized by Section 21-45-11, Miss.
Code Ann. (1972), to contracl with each other for joint and cooperalive action relative lo the financing for the
construction of pnblic infrasiruciure improvemnents and facilities and to jointly pledge rcverue to fund the debt
service of any such indebtedness inciured pursnant 1o the 1ax increwment financing Jaws. The infrastmcture
improvements were made to accommodate development withiu the City of Magee in connection with a proposed
Wal-Mart Supercenter. The county’s responsibilily is to pledge the additional ad valorem tax revenue gencrated by
the developmeni as securily for it's pro rata share of debt service on the bonds issucd by the city. The county must
pay (he city 50% of the annna! debt service on the bonds on the 15" day of each mouth preceding the instalbment
due on the bonds. The eounty’s total cost of the joint veuture is $266,209, which will be due in semni-annual
installments through September, 2009. During the year, the county appropriated $29,034 for the Joint venture.

Joinily Governed Organizalions.
The eounty paricipales in the following fointly governed orgamzations:

Copiah-Lincoln Community College operales in a disirict composed of the Connties of Adams, Copiah, Franklin,
Jefferson, Lawrence, Lincoln and Simpson. The Simpson County Board of Supervisors appoints two of the 27
members of the college board of trusiees. The county appropriated $861,340 for the mainienanee and support of the
coliege in fiscal year 2009,

Region Eight Memal Health Commission operates in a district composed of the Counties of Copiah, Madison,
Rankin and Simpson. The Simpson County Board of Supervisors appoints one member of the board of
commissioners. The county appropriated $45,000 for support of the commission m fiscal year 2009,

Central Mississippi Planning and Development District operales in a distriet comnposed of the counties of Copial,
Hinds, Madison, Rankin, Simpson, Warren and Yazoo. The Simpson County Board of Supervisors appoints three of
ihe 33 wmembers of the board of direciors. The county contributes a small percentage of the district’s total revenue.
The connly appropriated $13,749 for the supporl of the district in fiscal year 2009.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

Plan Description. Sitnpson Connly, Mississippi, eontribntes to the Public Employees' Retirement Systemn of
Mississippi (PERS), a cost-shanug, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension ptan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjusiments and death benefits Lo plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions are established by stalc Jaw and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial stalemenis and reqnired supplementary
information. That inforination may be oblained by wriling 1o Public Emplovees’ Retirement System, PERS
Building, 429 Mississippi Streel, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling 1-800-444-PERS.

Funding Policy. PERS members are required 10 eontribule 7.23% of their anneal covered salary, and the county is
required to contribule at an actuarially determined rate. The rate al September 30, 2009 was 12.00% of aunual
covered pavroll The contrihution requirements of PERS members aie establislied aud way be amended only by the
Stale of Mississippi Legislature, The county’s contribulions (employer share ouly) io PERS for the years ending
Scpiember 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $409,316, $366,8935 and $353,201, respeclively, equal to the required
contribulions for each year.
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Subsequent Events.

Subsequeut to Scptember 30, 2009, Simpson County issued the following debi obligation:

Issue Interest Issue  Typeof Source of
Date Rate Amount  Financing Financing
10/15/2009 3.24% 5 50,000  Lease purchase Ad valorem laxes
10/15/2009 3.39% 108,163  Lease purchase Ad valorem laxes
10420/2009 3.19% 198,301  Lease purchase Ad valorem taxes

On November 9, 2009, the Board of Supervisors accepted a bid of $434,000 for the construction of a
Human Services Building. The building is fanded by a CDBG grant.
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
General Fund

For the Year Ended Seprember 30, 2009

REVENUES
Property 1axes
Licenses, comnmissions and other revenue
Fines and florfeilures
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges lor services
Interest income
Miscellancous revenues
Toial Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Conservation of nawral resources
Teenomic developiment and assistance
Debt service:
Tnterest
Tolal Expenchiures

Excess of Revenues
over (under } Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale ol capital assets
Transfers ont

Total Other Fimaneing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balanees - Ending

Variance with

Actual Final Budgel
Original Final {Budgelary Positive
Budget Budger Basis) {Negnuve)
3,605,435 3,789.423 3789423
204,260 233,859 233,839
471,000 669,836 669,836
866,301 900,105 900,103
127,000 131,700 131,700
150,000 174,693 174,693
50,300 120,073 120,073
5,474,296 6,019,689 6,019,689 0
2,706,382 2,558,983 2,558,983
2,186,658 1,948,342 1,948,542
249,815 282422 282,422
180,831 315,934 315,934
94,763 97,691 97,691
42,784 41,123 41,123
1,660 1,660
5,461,433 5,246,353 5,246,335 0
12,863 773,334 773,334 0
4,169 4,169
(8,626 (74,298) (74.29%)
(8,620) (70,129) {70,129} {
4,237 703,205 703,205 )
1,824,439 2,388,078 2,388,078 0
1,828,676 3091283 3,091,283 f

The accompunying notes o the Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this stalement.
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Budgetary Compartsen Schedule -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
Countywide Road Maintcnance Furn
Far the Year Ended September 30, 2009

REVENUES
Property texes
Road and britlge privilege taxes
Iniergovernmental reveres
Interest meoms
Miscellauecus revenues

Total Reveuues

FXPENDITURES
Current;
Public works
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditires

Excess o[ Reveuves
over (under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Loug-term capital delit issued
Proceeds [rom sale of capital assets
‘Total Olher Financing Sources and [Jses

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balauees - I'nding

3

Vanancc with

Actual Final Budget

Original Final (Budgetary Positive

Budget Budget Basis) {Negalive)
602,207 585,366 595,366
310,000 311,165 311,163
683,000 682,065 682,065
14,000 35,834 35,834
4838 4,838

1,609,207 1,629,268 1,629,268 0
2242 007 2,104,145 2,104,143
68,000 63,124 63,124
12,000 13,012 13,012

2,322,007 2,180,281 2,180,281 0

(712,800) (351,013 {551,013) 0
433,898 433,898
3,852 3,852

0 437750 437,750 0

{712,800) {113,263) {113,263) 0

316,123 1,118,710 1,118,710 0

(396,677 1,005,447 1,005,447 ]

The accompanying notes to the Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this stalement.
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Notes 10 the Required Supplementary Informatiou
For the Year Ended Scptember 30, 2009

Budgetary Information.

Statutory requirements dictate how and when the connty's bndget is to be prepared. Geuverally, in
the inonth of August, prior (o the ensuing fiseal year beginning each October 1, the Board of
Supervisors of the county, using historical and anticipaled fiscal data and proposcd budgets
submitied by the Sheriff and the Tax Assessor-Collector for lus or her respective departinent,
prepares an ariginal budget for each of the Governinental Funds for said fiscal year. The
completed budget for the fiscal year includes for each fund every source of revennc, each general
ilem of expenditure, and the unencumbered cash and investinent balances, When during the fiscal

year it appears to the Board of Supervisors that budgetary estimates will not be net, it may make
revisions lo the budget.

The county's budget is prepared principally on the cash basis of accounting, All appropriations
lapse al year-end, and there are no eucumbrances to budgel because state law does not require that
funds be available when goods or services arc ordered, only when paymeut is marle,

Basis of Presentation.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) presents the
origiual legally adopted budgel, the final legally adopted budgel, aclual amounts on a budgetary
{Non-GAAP Basis) and vanances between the final budget and the actual amonuts. The schedule
is presented for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fuud. The Budgetary

Comparisou Schedule - Budgel and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis} is a pant of required supplemental
information,

Budpet/GAAP Reconciliation,
The major differentces between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

l.  Revenues are recorded when received int cash (budgelary) as opposed to when susceptible to
accnoal (GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded wheu paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible Lo
accrual {GAAP).

The following schedule reconciles the budgetary basis schedules to the GAAP basis financial
statements for the General Fund and the Countywide Road Maintenance Fuud:

Jovernmental Fund {'ypes

Counly-wide
Road
Maintenance
General Fund Fund

Nel Change in Fund Balance-Budget
Cash Balance 3 703205 {(113,26%)

Increase {decrease):

Nel adjustments for revenue accruals 33,603 3,596
Net adjusiments for expendilure accruals 54,028 B.771
Net Change in Fund Balance GAAP Basis $ 792 836 (100,896}
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SIMPSON COUNTY
Schedule of Expendlitures of Federal Awards
Scplernher 30, 2009

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Granior/
Program Title

Federal
CI'DA

Number

MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS

U.S Department of ITousing and Urban

Development/Passed-through

Mississippi Development Authority
CDBG - Business Park - Kalrina 2008

Total Expendinires of Major Federal Awards

OTHER I'EDERAL AWARDS
1.8, Department of Justice/Passed-through the
Mississippt Nepartment of Pnblic Safety

DUI OfTicers Grant

Local law enforcement block grant program

Total U.8. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of [{ousing and Urban
Developinent/Passed-through Mississippi
Development Authonty

HOME grant

Total U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

U.S. Departmeut of Homeland Security/
Passed-thyough Mississippi Department ol
Homeland Security

Performance granls

Disaster Assistance Granls

Total 11.5. Department of Homeland Secunty

U.8. Depariment of Transportation -

Federal [lighway Adnnmstration/Passed-through the

Mississippr Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction

Total Expenditures of Other Fedaral Avards

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

14.228

16.738
16.738

14.239

97.042
97036

20,205
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Grant
Identification
Number

Agency or
Pass-ihrough
Number

TFederal

Disbursements/
Expendilures

R-103-064-01-KED

N8CA1641

[220-M08-5G-280-141

BR NBIS 070 B (064)

621,997

621,997

103,769
5,000

108,769

29,617
38,808

68,425

9,600

190,294

812,291



SIMPSON COUNTY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Seplember 30, 2009

fConrinued)

NOTES TO 8CIEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Notc A - Significant Accounling Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Simpson Conuty and is presented on
ilie modified acerual basis of acconnting. The information in this schednle is presenled in accordance with the requirements of OMB

Circular A-133, Ardits of States, Local Govertments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this sehednle
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial sialements.
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Windham and Lacey, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

2708 01d Brandon Road
Pear], MS 39208
{601)939-8676

Tax (601)939-8761

hembers:
American Institure of CI'As
Mississippr Sociery of CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mermnbers of (e Board of Supervisors
Simpson County, Mississippi

We have audited the (inancial statements of the governmental activiiies, bnsiness-type activities, the
discretcly presenicd component unil, each major fimd and the aggregate remaining fund information of Simpson
County, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended Sepleinber 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated
May 31, 2010. We did not audilt the fruaneial siatements of the Simpson County Human Resonrce Agency, a
component unit, which represents 100% of the assets and revenues of the discretely presemed component unit
column, Those staternents werc andited by other auditors whose report thereon lhas been furnished to ns, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts inclnded for the aforementioned componernt unil, is based solely on Lhe
repott of (he other andilors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in Lhe
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Governmment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statemeuts of the Simpson County

Huinan Resource Agency were auditcd by other anditors and were audited in accordance with Goverument Audiling
Standards.

juternal Conirol Over Financial Repornting

In planning and performing our audit, we considcred Simpson County, Mississippi’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing onr auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
linancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effcctivencss of Simpson County's
intermal control over (inancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opimon on the effectivencss of the
county’s internal control over (inancial reporting.

Our consideralion of inicrnal contro! over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not neeessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be significant deficicncies or material weakncsses, However, as discnssed below, we identificd a certain
deficiency in intemnal enntrol over financial reporting that we consider 1o be a significant deficicncy.

A control deficiency exists when he design or operation of a control does not allow management or
cinployees, in the normal course of performing (heir assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatemnents on a
linely basis. A signilicant deficiency is a control deficiency, or cornbination of control deficiencies, that adversely
alfects the county’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report [inancial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepled acconnting principles such that therc is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
couuty’s [inancial stalemeuts that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by ithe county’s
mternal control. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as 09-0! (o be a significant deficiency in intemal control over financial reporting.
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A malerial weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatcinent of the financial slaternenis will not be prevenied or
detected by the connty’s internal conlrol.

Onr consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not neccssarily idenlify all deficiencies in the internal control that might
be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant defieiencies that are also

congidered to be matcrial weaknesses. However, we believe (hat the significant deficiency described above is not a
1nalerial weakncss.

Compliance and Oiher Matiters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about wheiher Simpson County, Mississippi's financial
statements arc free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regnlations, contraclts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a dircet and 1naterial effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our andit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The rcsults of our
tests disclosed an instance of nonconpliance that is required (o be reponed under Gaverminent Auditing Standards
and whicl is described {n the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 09-01.

Simpson County’s respornise to the finding identified in onr audit is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosls. We did not audit Simpson County’s response and accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and nse of managemen and federal awarding apencies
and pass-throngh eatitics and is vot intended 1o be and should not be used by anyone other than these speeificd
parties. However, (his report is a matter of public record and its distribntion is not limited.

c—{’/f ﬂ.mJ —-Q«j, e

Windham and Lacey, PLLC
May 31, 2010
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Windham and Lacey, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

27008 Old Brandon Road

Members:
Pearl, M3 39208 Amencan Institule of CPAs
(501)939-8676 Mississippi Society of CPAs

Fax (601)739-8761

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Mermbcrs of the Board of Supervisors
Simpson County, Missigsippi

Compliance

We have audited ihe compliance of Simpson County, Mississippi, with the types of compliancc
reqnircimenis deseribed in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circuiar A-133 Compliance
Supplemenr hal are applicable (o cach of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2009,
Simpson County, Mississippi's majer federal programs are idenlified in the summary of auditor's results section of
the aceownpanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Complianee with the requirements of laws,
regnlalions, coniracts and grants applieable lo each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Simpson
County, Mississippi's management. Our responsibility is to express an opiniou on Simpson County, Mississippi's
compliance based on our audit.

Wc conducled our audit of eompliance in aceordance with andiling standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the slandards applicable to financial audits contaived in Government Auditing Standards,
issned by the Comptroller General of the Uniled States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizafions. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require thal we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abont whetber noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred o above that conld have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes exainining, on a test basis, evidence about Simpson Connty, Mississippi's compliance with those
requirements aud performiug such other procednres as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audil provides a reasonable basis for our opimion. Qur andil does nol provide a legal determinarion on
Simpson County, Mississippi's compliance with those requirements.

[n our opinion, Sitnpson County, Mississippi, cowmplied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referted Lo above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended Septeinber 30, 2009, However,
the resulis of pur auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with a requirement which is required
to be reported in accordance with OMB Circnlar A-133 and which is dcscribed in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings amd Questioned Cosis as ilem 09-02,

Intemal Control Over Complianee

The management of Siwpson County, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and mamtaining effective
tuternal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracis and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considercd Simpson Connty, Mississippi's internal contro! over
eompliance with the requirements that conld have a direct and marerial effect on a major federal program in order to
determine onr anditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion ou compliance, but not for the purpose
of expressiug an opinton on the effectivencss of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the ¢ffectiveness of the county’s internal control over compliance.
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Qur consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not neeessarily identify all deficiencies in intemnal control thal might be
significan! deficiencies or material weaknesses. Howcver, as discussed below, we idenlificd a deficiency in inlernal
conirol over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A control deficiency in a county’s internal control over complianee exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management ot einployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevenl or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requircment of a federal program on a tirnely basis. A
significant deficiency is a conirol deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, thal adversely alfects the
county’s ability to admimister a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance
with a type of compliance requircment of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevenied
or detecled by (he county's internal conirol. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance

described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosls as item 09-02 (o be a significant
deficiency.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencics, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will nol be prevented or detecicd by the entity’s mlemal conirol. We did not consider the deficiency
described in the accoinpanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 09-02 to be a material weakncss.

Simpson County’s response to the finding identified m our audit is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not andit Simpson County’s response and accordingly, we
£Xpress no opimon on it

This report is iniended solely [or the information and usc of management, the Board ol Supervisors, others
within the enlity, and federal awarding agcncies and pass-through entities aud is not intended to be and should not
be uscd by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this reporl is a malter of public record and its
distribution is not limited.

> f e 22
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Windharn and Lacey, PLLC
May 31,2010
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Windham and Lacey, PLLC

Certifled Public Accountants

2708 Old Brandon Road
Paur], MS 39208

{601 M9-8676

Fax {6011935-8761

Members:
American Instimie of CPAs
Missizsippi Suciety of CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CENTRAL PURCHASING SYSTEM,
INVENTORY CONTROL SYSTEM AND PURCHASE CLERK SCHEDULES
(REQUIRED BY SECTION 31-7-115, MISS. CODE ANN. (1972))

Members of the Board of Supervisors
Simmpson County, Mississippi

We have made a study and evalnation of the central purchasing system and invenlory control gystemn of
Simpson County, Mississippi, as of and for the ycar ended September 30, 2009, Our study and evaluation included
tests of contpliance of the Purchase Clerk and [nventory Control Clerk records and such other auditing procedures as
we considered necessary in the circninstanees,

The Board of Supervisers of Simpson County, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
a central purchasing syslem and inventory eontrof system i1 accordance with Sections 31-7-101 through 31-7-127,
Miss. Code Anm. (1972). In addition, the Board of Supcrvisors is responsible for purchasing in accordance with the
bid requircments of Seclion 31-7-13, Miss. Code Aum. {1972). The Board of Snpervisors of Simpson County,
Mississippi, has csablished eentralized purchasing for all funds of the county and has cstablished an inventory

control system. The objective of the central purchasing system is to provide reasonable, bui not absolute, assurance
that purchases are executed in accordance with stale law.

Becanse of inherent limitations in any central purchasing system and inventory control system, errors or
irregularities may occunr and noi be detccted. Also, projection of any evalnation of the system to future periods is
snbyect to the risk that procedures may become inadequate becanse of changes mi conditions or that the depree of
compliance with the procednres may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Sitnpson County, Mississippi, complied, in all malerial respects, with state laws governing
central purchasing, inventory and bid reqmireinents,

The accompanying schedules of (1) purchases not made from the lowest bidder, (2) cmergency purchases
and (3} purchases made noncompelitively from a sole sonrce are presenied in accordanee with Section 31-7-115.
Miss. Cede Aun. (1972). The infortnation contained on these schedules has been snbjected to procednres perforined
in connection with our aforcmentioned study and evaluation of the purchasing system and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented when considered in relation lo that study and evaluation.

This report is intended for vse in evaluating the central purchasing system of Sirpson County, Mississippt,
and is not iniended Lo be and shonld not be relied upen for any other purpose. However, this report is a matler of
public record and iis distribution is not linzited.

A
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Windhain and Lacey, PLLC
May 31, 2010
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SIMPSON COUNTY
Schedule of Purchases Not Made From Lowest Bidder
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Schedule |

Reasons for aceepting

Bid Lowest  oiher than the
Date [tein Purchased Accepled  Vendor Bid lowesl bid
04/1572009 100kw mobile generalor $38.808 Taylor Power Syslems $38,695 Low bid failed to include transfer

switch i the specilications at a
cost of $3,000. Service location
twice as close [rom other than the
the low bidder,
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SIMPSON COUNTY
Schedule of Emergency Purchases
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Schedule 2

Our icst resulis did not idenlify any emergency purchases.



SIMPSON COUTNY

Schedule of Purchases Made Noncompelitively From a Sole Scurce
For the Year Euded Septernber 30, 2009

Schedule 3

Itews
Dale Purchased Arpount Vendor
09/04/2009 Five multiband portable radios $ 23,855  Molorola
06/26/2009 Radio equipment 4,785  Hysio-Coutrol, Inc.
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Windham and Lacey, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

2708 Old Drandon Road

Members:
Pearl, 15 39208 American Instinfe of CPAs
(601)939-8670 Mississipm Society of CPAs

Fax (601)919-8761

LIMITED INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE REVIEW MANAGEMENT REPORT

Members of ihe Board of Supervisors
Simpson County, Mississippi

In planning and performing our andit of the financial siatements of Simpson County, Mississippi for the
year ended September 30, 2009, we considered Simpson County, Mississippi’s internal eontrol o dcterinine our
auditing procedures for the pnrpose of expressing our opinions on the {inaneial statements and not Lo provide
assurance on internal control,

In addition, for areas not coasidcred matenial to Simpson Connly, Mississippi’s financial reporting, we hiave
performed some additional limited intcmal control and state legal compliance review procedures as identified in Lhe
state legal conpliance andit program issued by the Office of the State Auditor. Our procedures were snbstantially
less in scope than an andit, (he objective of which is the cxpression of an opinion on the connty’s compliance wilh
these requirements. Accordingly, we do not cxpress such an opinion. This report does not affect our report dated
May 31, 2010, on the financial statements of Simpson County, Mississippi.

Although no findings eamc lo our attention as a result of these review procednres and compliance tests,
these procedures and tests cannot and do not provide absolnte assurance that all state legal regquirements have been
complied with. Also, our consideration of (he internal eontrol would not necessarily disclose all matiers within the
inlernal control that might be weaknesses. [n accordance with Section 7-7-211, Miss. Code Ann, (1972), the Oflice
of the Stale Andilor, when deeined necessary, may conduct additional procedures and tests of ransactions for 1liis or
other fiscal vears to ensure compliance with {egal reqnireinents.

Due to the reduced scope, these review procedures and compliance lests cannol and do not provide absolnte
assurance that all state legal requireanents have been complied with. Also, onr eonsideration of internal control
would nol necessarily disclose all matters within the intermal eontrol that might be weaknesscs. In accordance with
Section 7-7-211, Miss. Code Ann. (1972), (he Office of the Slate Auditor, when deemed neccssary, may conduct
additional procedurcs amd tesis of transactions for this or other fiscal years to ensure compliance with legal
requirements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and is not intended to be and
should not be nsed by anyonc other than this party. However, this repont is a watter of pnblic record and its
distribution is not limired

a,!,{wf, - J!:Q?‘, f;::fn:_“

Windham and Laccy, PLLC
May 31, 2010

47



SIMPSON COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended Septeinber 30, 2009

Seetion 1: Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Stafements:

L Type of audilor’s report issued on the financial slatements: Unqualified
1. Internal control over finangial reporting:
a. Material weakness identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered 1o be watenal Yes
weaknesses?
3 Noncompliance naterial to the financial statements? No
Federal Awards:
4. Internal control over major programs:
a, Material weakness identificd? No
b. Signilicant deficiencics identilied that are not considercd to be material Yes
weakngsses?
5 Type of audilor’s report 1ssued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqnalified

6. Any audit findings reponed as required by Scction _ .510¢a) of Circnlar A-1337 No
7. Federal programns identified as major programs:
Community devciopment block grants/state’s programn, CFDA #14.228
8. The dollar threshold used (o distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000
9. Audilee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No

18, Prior fiscal your audit fudings and questioned cost relanve to federal awards winch
would require the anditee to prepare a snmmary schedule of prior audit findings s
discussed in Scction 313(b) of OMB Circular A-1337 No
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SIMPSON COUNTY

Schednle of Findings and Questioned Costs
For (he Year Ended September 30, 2009

Seetion 2: Finaneial Stalement Findings

Board of Supervisors.

Significant Deficiency

0801,

Finding

During (he fiscal year, finds were expended for two construction projects, an indusirial park and a building
addition with ihc county acting ag contractor. In each of these instances the amount capilalized was nol
added 1o the fixed asset records of the county in a timely manner. The failure to add these items to the
fixed asset records causes an undersiatement of the county’s net assels.

Recominendation

The county bas a procedure Lo identify and record (he additions to the [ixed assets records. Tliis procednre
should be followed and modified to address the issue of not reporting the acquisition of this type capital
expenditure, When bronght to the altention of management, these projects were added 1o fixed assets.

Response

The connty will implement a tickler file in both the County Administrator’s Office and the Inventory
Clerk’s Office for capital expenditures lo insure that construction in progress acconnts and Councy-bnilt
consiruction projects are inclnded on the county inventory records,

Seclion 3: Federal Award Findings and Qucstioned Costs

09-02.

Finding

Program: CFDA #14.219 and 14228 R-103-064-01-KED, 2008 Community Development Block
Gremis/State’s Programn

United States Department of Housiug and Urban Development/Passed-through
Mississippi Devciopinent Authority

Compliance Requirement: Equipment and Real Property Managemeni

During (he fiscal year, funds were expended for the construction of an indnstrial park. This was a capital
project, construction in progress. The amount expended for this project was not added to the fixed asset
records of (he county in a fimely manner. The failure to add these items 1o the Naed assel records canses an
understatement of the county’s nei assets and a failure to acconnl for asscls acquired with federal funds.

Questioned Costs

None

Reconitnendation

Management lias a procedure (o identify and record the additions lo the fixed asscls records. This

procedure was nol followed. Tlhis procedure should be followed and modified to address the issue of not

reporting the acqnisition of this tvpe capilal expendimre. When this issuc was brought to the attention of
manageinent, this projcel was added to the fixcd asset records.
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Cuorlls Skiffer ’SIMPSON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

Randy Moore
District One OFFICE OF THE District Five
Harvey Blakeney BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Danny Welch
Distriet Two Atlomey for the Board
Pete Lawery PO.ROX 308 Rhuel P. Dickinson, JIr,
Cistrict Three MENDENHALL, MS 39114 County Administrator
Mickey Berry TELEPHONE (60I) 847-1418 « FAX (401) 847-7004 Tommy Joe Harvey
District Four

Chaneery Clerk

Simpson County
Fiscal Year 2009 Correclive Action Plan

Secuion 3: Federa) Award Finding

The County will implement a tickler [ile in bath the County Administrator’s Office and the

Inventory Clerk’s Office for capital expenditures to insure that construction in progress accounts
are included on the county inventory records.

The County Administrator will be the person responsible for the implementation of the
correclive aclion.

The corrective action was implemented May 1, 2010,

7L

Rhuel P, Dickinson, Jr., CPA
County Administralor
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[FORM OF OPINION OF SPECIAL COUNSEL]

November 1, 2010

Simpson County, Mississippi
Mendenhall, Mississippi

BancorpSouth, Trustee
Jackson, Mississippi

RE: $7,740,000 Certificates of Participation (Simpson County, Mississippi Lease
Purchase Project), Series 2010

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as Special Counsel in connection with the sale, execution and delivery of
$7,740,000 aggregate principal amount of Certificates of Participation (Simpson County,
Mississippi Lease Purchase Project), Series 2010 (the "Certificates"), representing proportionate
undivided interests of the owners thereof in a Lease and Option to Purchase, dated as of the date
of delivery, (the "Lease"), by and between Simpson County, Mississippi (the "County"), and
Central Mississippi Public Improvement Corporation, a non-profit corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Mississippi (the "Corporation"), including the right to
receive payments of Base Rental to be made by the County thereunder. The Certificates are
being executed, issued and delivered pursuant to a Trust Agreement, dated as of the date of
delivery (the "Trust Agreement"), by and between the County and BancorpSouth, Jackson,
Mississippi, as trustee (the "Trustee"). All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise
defined shall have the same meanings assigned to them in the Trust Agreement and the Lease.

The County has leased certain real property (the "Property") located in the County to the
Corporation pursuant to a Ground Lease, dated as of the date of delivery (the "Ground Lease"),
by and between the County and the Corporation. The County has entered into the Ground Lease
for the purpose of enabling the Corporation to acquire, construct, finance and equip a County
jail, sheriff department/justice court building and related facilities, including but not limited to a
dormitory to house State prisoners under authority of Sections 31-8-1 et seq., Mississippi Code
of 1972 (the "Act") to be leased to the County. The obligation of the County to make Base
Rental and Additional Rental payments under the Lease constitutes a binding obligation of the
County in accordance with the terms of said Lease. Provided, however, so long as no default of
any monetary obligation of the County has occurred, the County's obligation to pay any amounts
due or perform any covenants requiring or resulting in the expenditure of money shall be
contingent and expressly limited to the extent of any specific, annual appropriation made by the
County to fund such Lease. Nothing contained in the Lease shall create any monetary obligation
on the part of the County beyond such current and specific appropriation. The County's Board of
Supervisors (the "Governing Body"), in its sole discretion, may make said payments with any
lawfully available revenues. Except as stated in the Trust Agreement, nothing in the Lease
creates a lien of any kind or character whatsoever upon any funds, income or revenue now
existing or hereafter held, collected, received, anticipated by, or available to the Governing Body
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or prevents or restricts the Governing Body at any time from pledging, obligating or creating
specific liens upon funds, income or revenues to or for the payment of any bonds, notes or
certificates of the Governing Body or for any other purpose whatsoever. The County has not
pledged or levied any form of taxation for the payment of Outstanding Certificates.

The obligation of the County under the Lease is not a general obligation and does not
constitute a pledge of the full faith and credit of the County, the State of Mississippi or any
political subdivision or agency thereof within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
provision or limitation.

A portion of each Base Rental payment is designated as interest. Under the Lease, the
County is required to deposit with the Trustee Base Rental payments at least five days prior to
the date such payments are due under the Lease. The Corporation has assigned its right to
receive Base Rental payments and certain other rights and interests in the Lease and the Ground
Lease to the Trustee pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, dated as of the date of delivery (the
"Assignment Agreement"), by and between the Trustee and the Corporation.

The Certificates are registered (in book-entry form) as to both principal and interest; are
dated the date of delivery; are issued in the denomination of $5,000 each, or integral multiples
thereof up to the amount of a single maturity; are numbered from one upward in the order of
issuance; bear interest from the date thereof at the rate or rates specified, payable on May 1 and
November 1 of each year (each an "Interest Payment Date"), commencing May 1, 2011; and
mature and become due and payable on November 1 in the years and in the principal amounts as
follows:

YEAR AMOUNT=* YEAR AMOUNT
2011 $275,000 2021 $375,000
2012 285,000 2022 390,000
2013 290,000 2023 410,000
2014 300,000 2024 425,000
2015 310,000 2025 440,000
2016 320,000 2026 460,000
2017 330,000 2027 485,000
2018 340,000 2028 505,000
2019 350,000 2029 530,000
2020 365,000 2030 555,000

*Subject to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.

Certificates maturing on November 1, 2021 and thereafter, are subject to redemption
prior to their stated dates of maturity, at par, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption,
either in whole at any time on or after November 1, 2020, or in part, in inverse order of maturity
and by lot within a maturity on November 1, 2020, or on any Interest Payment Date thereafter.

As Special Counsel, we have examined copies certified to us as being true and complete
copies of the proceedings of the Board of Supervisors of the County in connection with the
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authorization and sale of the Certificates. Our services as Special Counsel were limited to an
examination of the transcript of such proceedings and to rendering the opinions set forth herein.
In this connection, we have also examined such certificates of public officials and officers of the
County and the Corporation as we have considered necessary for the purposes of this opinion.

On the basis of such examination, and in reliance thereon, and based on our consideration
of such questions of law as we have deemed relevant in the circumstances, we are of the opinion
that:

1. The transcript of certified proceedings of the Board of Supervisors regarding the
Certificates, including, but not limited to, the Lease, Ground Lease and the Trust Agreement,
evidences complete legal authority for the issuance of the Certificates in full compliance with the
Constitution and laws of the State of Mississippi presently in effect, and therefore, the Lease,
including the County's obligation to make Base Rental payments evidenced by the Certificates,
constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of the County.

2. The portion of each Base Rental payment accruing under the Lease designated as
and comprising interest and received by the Owners of the Certificates is excluded under existing
statutes, regulations and court decisions, from gross income for federal income tax purposes
pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and
is exempt from personal income taxes of the State of Mississippi under present state law.

3. The Certificates are not "private activity bonds" as defined in Section 141(a) of
the Code and, therefore, the interest received is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the
Code's alternative minimum tax provisions.

In rendering these opinions, we are relying upon representations and covenants of the
County in the Trust Agreement and in the County's Tax and Non-Arbitrage Certificate of even
date herewith concerning the investment and use of Certificate proceeds and the rebate to the
federal government of certain earnings thereon. In addition, we have assumed that all such
representations are true and correct and that the County will comply with such covenants. We
express no opinion with respect to the exclusion of the interest from gross income under Section
103(a) of the Code in the event that any of such representations are untrue or the County fails to
comply with such covenants. Except as stated above, we express no opinion as to any federal tax
consequences of the receipt of interest, or the ownership or disposition of the Certificates.

It is to be understood that the rights of the holders of the Certificates and the
enforceability of the Certificates may be subject to the bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to
the extent constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement may also be subject to the
exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. In addition, without in any way limiting or
qualifying our opinions set forth above, we advise you that we have not made or undertaken to
make any investigation of the state of the title to any of the real or personal property described in
the Ground Lease or the Lease, or of the accuracy or sufficiency of the description of such
property contained therein, and we express no opinion with respect to such matters.
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We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or
sufficiency of the Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Certificates (except
to the extent, if any, stated in the Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto
(excepting only the matters set forth as our opinion in the Official Statement).

No opinion is expressed herein as to the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the
Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, or other offering material relating to the
Certificates.

Sincerely,

BUTLER, SNOW, O'MARA, STEVENS & CANNADA, PLLC
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APPENDIX D

SCHEDULE OF BASE RENTAL PAYMENTS
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$7,740,000
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION
(SIMPSON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI LEASE PURCHASE PROJECT), SERIES 2010

SCHEDULE OF BASE RENTAL PAYMENTS

PERIOD
DATE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

05/01/2011 $152,225.63 $152,225.63
11/01/2011 $275,000.00 152,225.63 $427,225.63
05/01/2012 148,100.63 148,100.63
11/01/2012 285,000.00 148,100.63 433,100.63
05/01/2013 143,825.63 143,825.63
11/01/2013 290,000.00 143,825.63 433,825.63
05/01/2014 139,475.63 139,475.63
11/01/2014 300,000.00 139,475.63 439,475.63
05/01/2015 134,975.63 134,975.63
11/01/2015 310,000.00 134,975.63 444,975.63
05/01/2016 130,325.63 130,325.63
11/01/2016 320,000.00 130,325.63 450,325.63
05/01/2017 125,525.63 125,525.63
11/01/2017 330,000.00 125,525.63 455,525.63
05/01/2018 120,369.38 120,369.38
11/01/2018 340,000.00 120,369.38 460,369.38
05/01/2019 114,631.88 114,631.88
11/01/2019 350,000.00 114,631.88 464,631.88
05/01/2020 108,288.13 108,288.13
11/01/2020 365,000.00 108,288.13 473,288.13
05/01/2021 101,444.38 101,444.38
11/01/2021 375,000.00 101,444.38 476,444.38
05/01/2022 93,944.38 93,944.38
11/01/2022 390,000.00 93,944.38 483,944.38
05/01/2023 86,144.38 86,144.38
11/01/2023 410,000.00 86,144.38 496,144.38
05/01/2024 77,688.13 77,688.13
11/01/2024 425,000.00 77,688.13 502,688.13
05/01/2025 68,922.50 68,922.50
11/01/2025 440,000.00 68,922.50 508,922.50
05/01/2026 59,572.50 59,572.50
11/01/2026 460,000.00 59,572.50 519,572.50
05/01/2027 48,762.50 48,762.50
11/01/2027 485,000.00 48,762.50 533,762.50
05/01/2028 37,365.00 37,365.00
11/01/2028 505,000.00 37,365.00 542,365.00
05/01/2029 25,497.50 25,497.50
11/01/2029 530,000.00 25,497.50 555,497.50
05/01/2030 13,042.50 13,042.50
11/01/2030 555,000.00 13,042.50 568,042.50

TOTAL $7,740,000.00 $3,860,255.14 $11,600,255.14




